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DESIGNED FROM THE GROUND UP FOR TOP VALUE AND PERFORMANCE,
THE JOHN DEERE 100-SERIES LAWN TRACTORS ARE COMING TO DEERE
DEALERS AND HOME DEPOT STORES IN THE SPRING OF 2003, THE NEW
LINE INCLUDES FIVE MODELS, FROM 17 TO 25 HORSEPOWER AND WITH
MOWING DECKS FROM 42 TO 54 INCHES IN SIZE.

THE NEW LAWN-TRACTOR FAMILY IS AIMED AT THE HIGH VOLUME,
MID-PRICED SEGMENT OF TODAY’S MARKET. REGARDLESS OF WHERE
PURCHASED, EVERY NEW 100-SERIES PRODUCT IS BACKED BY THE

UNMATCHED SERVICE CAPABILITIES OF A JOHN DEERE DEALER.
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5 NET SALES & REVENUES OPERATING PROFIT & NET INCOME
TOTAL NET SALES AND REVENUES ROSE 5% FOR THE YEAR TO OPERATING PROFIT, AS WELL AS NET INCOME, STAGED A SHARP
A RECORD LEVEL. THE INCREASE WAS MAINLY DUE TO HIGHER REBOUND IN 2002. THE IMPROVEMENT WAS REELECTIVE OF OPERATING
SALES OF FARM MACHINERY, ESPECIALLY IN EUROPE, WHERE A AND ASSET EFFICIENCIES, COUPLED WITH POSITIVE CUSTOMER
RECORD NUMBER OF NEW PRODUCTS DEBUTED IN 2002. OF RESPONSE TO JOHN DEERE PRODUCTS WORLDWIDE.

THE TOTAL, EQUIPMENT SALES WERE UP 6% TO $11.703 BILLION.

FOR A MORE COMPLETE DISCUSSION OF DEERE FINANCIAL RESULTS, SEE MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS STARTING ON P. 8,

Building a Business as Great as Our Products
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PLANS ON TRACK FOR
BUILDING A GREAT BUSINESS

SALES AND PROFITS MOVE HIGHER DUE TO EFFORTS
TARGETING IMPROVED PERFORMANCE

RIGOROUS ASSET MANAGEMENT, COST CONTROL
AND STRONG NEW-PRODUCT RESPONSE HIGHLIGHT '02

Focus ON EUROPE YIELDS SALES AND MARKET-SHARE GAINS

FURTHER IMPROVEMENT SEEN FOR 2003

Oour actions to make John Deere a more performance-driven
company, and a more prosperous investment, produced major results
in 2002. Customer response to new products drove sales and earnings
higher, while costs remained well under control and working-capital
levels again declined. Although our underlying markets remain below
normal, we see hopeful signs that conditions will improve in 2003
and we are looking for even better performance. We're excited

about the direction the company is headed and remain committed

to making sustainable improvements that will deliver higher returns

for our investors.

Last year, in fiscal 2002, Deere reported net income of $319
million on total net sales and revenues of §13.9 billion. This com-
pared with a net loss of $64 million on revenues of $13.3 billion in
2001. Equipment sales rose 6 percent, or about $600 million, to
$11.7 billion. Without the effect of restructuring charges in both
years, earnings would have more than doubled — to $365 million

versus $153 million in 2001.

General weakness in our major markets hurt earnings last year,
as did further production cutbacks made to reduce levels of working
capital. Cutbacks of this nature, made now for two years in a row,
set the tone for how John Deere intends to operate — as a lean, well-
disciplined enterprise. In addition, the working-capital reductions
helped support our cash flow from operations, which rose almost
70 percent, to $1.9 billion.

DEERE MANAGEMENT TEAM: ¢
FroM LEFT: DAVID Purvis, H.]. MARKLEY, PIERRE ’ LN
LEROY, NATHAN JONES, JAMES JENKINS, ROBERT LANE, ™%
JOHN JENKINS, DAVID EVERITT, AND SAMUEL ALLEN.
ALSO FEATURED: THE POPULAR JOHN DgErE 6420
TRACTOR, MADE IN GERMANY AND PART OF AN AGGRESSIVE
DRIVE TO ACHIEVE GROWTH IN EUROPE, 18 WINNING NEW
CUSTOMERS THROUGHOUT THE WORLD.
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Along these lines, the company

has continued to take decisive actions

aimed at building a business as great as its
products. Regrettably, this resulted in the closure of four
production facilities last year in the course of necessary restructuring
activities. Net of vital jobs added in key growth areas, our worldwide

workforce decreased by about 2,000 people.

Deere strengthened its global competitive position in 2002 as a
record number of new products became available in the market. Of
particular importance, Deere sales of farm machinery rose by some
30 percent, or about $500 million, in our European region. Sales of
commercial and consumer equipment also moved higher, in a strong

response to new lawn-tractor products.

Deere's performance in 2002 shows we are making progress toward
our equipment divisions' ambitious goal of a 20 percent operating
return on operating assets (OROA) at normal, or estimated mid-cycle,
sales volumes. This could be achieved, as an example, with two asset
turns and an operating margin of 10 percent. Last year, both asset
turns and margins showed improvement, producing an OROA of nearly
6 percent. While this is short of what we are targeting in the future, it
is much higher than in 2001 when OROA was a negative 1 percent.
Also, sales volumes last year ran more than 20 percent below normal

in some markets — and at approximately 87 percent of normal overall.
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RuUNNING SMART, FAST & LEAN

Deere employees, long committed to building great products, are
increasingly dedicated to making sustainable improvements in operating
and financial performance, In this regard, all of us are rapidly taking
dead aim at the shortcomings of excessive cost and asset intensity that
have kept our results at inconsistent, and generally inadequate, levels.
Only by making simultaneous breakthroughs in asset and operating
efficiency, while serving our new and existing customers at the highest

possible level, can our performance goals be reached.

Last year, as an example, receivables and inventory levels declined
by $323 million as a result of production cuts. This brought the total
reduction over the last two years to more than $600 million. In
conjunction with our ongoing efforts to develop an increasingly
responsive order-fulfillment system, we are improving our ability
to match production with retail orders. This brings many benefits —
typically, lower inventories, greater satisfaction for the individual

customer, and fresh new products which customers find of value.

We are making headway trimming expenses, too. Administrative
costs and research expense both declined last year. Product cost,
measured on a representative-machine basis and largely a reflection of

the price paid for purchased materials, was down close to 4 percent.

Important projects aimed at improved asset and cost control
have moved ahead, notably the redevelopment of our flagship large-
tractor factory in Waterloo, Iowa. A new line for 8020-series tractors
went into operation during the year, resulting in a major improve-
ment in assembly time and asset utilization. The $127 million rede-
velopment project will bring similar benefits to all Waterloo-made

tractors by the time it is completed in 2006.

’ 7300 Self-Propelled Forage Harvester

PursuING GLOBAL GROWTH

We cannot reach our financial goals by cost and asset control alone.
Thus Deere is continuing to invest in projects that meet our rigorous
performance targets with an eye toward new customers and future
sources of sales and profit. Capital spending, which we aim to keep
both disciplined and sustainable, was down last year yet still totaled
$358 million.

International expansion continues to offer a promising growth
platform for John Deere. Sales outside of the U.S. and Canada
increased to a record $3.5 billion in 2002, accounting for nearly
one-third of the worldwide total. Still, our global market shares have

much room for growth — growth we are determined to capture.

WINNING NEwW CUSTOMERS WORLDWIDE

Deere is continuing to pursue an aggressive drive to win new
customers in Europe. There the farm-machinery market is as large
as North America's yet John Deere's share of that market is much
smaller. Last year's sales growth in Europe brought significant share
gains in tractors and harvesting equipment. But we're confident it's
only a start. We are adding to our product lineup in Europe this year
with new forage harvesters and six new models of our popular 6020-
series tractors.

At the same time, Deere is building on its position as the global
leader in forestry equipment, serving customers worldwide. Our
construction and forestry business, further, is continuing to attract
large contractors to its updated and expanding product line.

Recent inroads in developing markets such as Brazil, India and
China put Deere in a strong position to take advantage of profitable
opportunities as these regions grow over time. In addition, our oper-
ations in these countries are becoming an important source of parts
and components for Deere units elsewhere in the world.

In line with our efforts to increase global-equipment sales, Deere
is expanding its international financing capabilities as well. With
the addition of Spain and Italy in 2002, John Deere Credit now has
a presence in 12 countries outside of the U.S. and Canada. Our
international finance portfolio grew by almost 20 percent last year

and totals well over $1 billion,

Building a Business as Great as Our Products
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DRIVING FOR DISCIPLINED GROWTH

What kind of growth are we seeking? Growth that is ambitious
yet disciplined, and which produces attractive returns for our
investors over time. In this regard, supplementing our equipment
offerings with new and expanded services remains an area of
great promise. A prime example is John Deere Landscapes, which
concluded its first full year of operation in 2002. The business
serves grounds-care professionals with irrigation, nursery and
related supplies through a network of 230 store locations. In spite
of widespread drought conditions, Landscapes was profitable last
year and had sales of about $400 million. Our landscapes operation
also creates potentially exciting sales opportunities for other

Deere businesses.

TARGETING PERFORMANCE THAT ENDURES

We are aiming for a sustained creation of Shareholder Value Added
(SVA). As illustrated and defined on pages 6 and 7, our ambitious
financial targets for OROA in equipment operations and Return on
Equity in financial services are designed to help create the level of
enterprise SVA to which we aspire.

Why does SVA matter? Because as diligent stewards of our
investors’ money, we are embracing much higher standards of per-
formance everywhere in our pursuit of sustained SVA creation. Such
clear standards of enduring performance, rooted in integrity and
reflecting a superior John Deere Experience for customers and
employees worldwide, promote a shared passion for building a great
business.

We are truly raising the bar, targeting levels of performance
similar to our previous best on average, and much higher than before
under comparable business conditions. In striving for these returns,
we are investing in the kind of advanced technology, features and
services that customers are willing to pay for.

We are fully committed to producing higher value for investors
and are absolutely convinced that a sustained superior return on
assets is necessary for doing so. That’s one reason we are conducting
rigorous step-by-step analyses of cost and asset usagein our equipment
businesses, right down to each individual product and model number.
In the year ahead, we will continue working to bring our cost and

asset structure into closer alignment with our profitability metrics.

Although these goals

are clearly aggressive,

tninC Crewler aze”
our resolve to set new SO O G A AR

standards should not be underestimated. That was evident in 2002
when our performance consistently outpaced expectations. Indeed,
the progress made to date attracting new customers, curbing costs

and reducing asset intensity has been quite mgmﬁcant.

CREATING THE JOHN DEERE EXPERIENCE

We have the tools to carry out our mission as planned. Deere
people and products are first-rate and our servicing-dealer network
worldwide is in a class of its own. Then there's the enduring strength
of the John Decre brand, underscored by a heritage of integrity and
genuine value. All of us are proud to be associated with a company so
honored for its record in ethics, safety and environmental steward-
ship. Qualities like these have been part of our culture for a long
time, but they have never been more relevant.

Our goal is to build a business, and an investment, worthy of
the quality products we make and the uncommonly dedicated John
Deere employees who make them. Much more remains to be done,
but we're off to a great start. We're confident John Deere is well on
the way to creating a level of financial and operating excellence that
will be greatly rewarding to all with a stake in our success. As we
proceed on this journey, a noble and exciting one, we say thanks

to those we are privileged to serve.

December 4, 2002

Sincerely,

22U L

Robert W. Lane
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Measuring Up

EQUIPMENT OPERATIONS

TO CREATE SVA USING METRICS RELEVANT

TO THEIR DAILY OPERATIONS, DEERE EQUIPMENT
BUSINESSES ARE TARGETING AN OPERATING RETURN
ON OPERATING ASSETS (OROA) OF 20% AT
NORMAL SALES VOLUMES — AND OTHER SIMILARLY

AMBITIOUS RETURNS AT OTHER POINTS IN THE CYCLE.

A NORMAL-SALES PERCENTAGE OF 90%, FOR
EXAMPLE, MEANS THAT SALES ARE RUNNING 10%
BELOW ESTIMATED MID-CYCLE VOLUME.

Y] 01 02
Normat Sales % 91 84 87
Net Sales $MM 11169 11077 11703
Op Profit $MM 693 (46) 401
Avg Assets $MM 9039 9678 7147
Op Margin % 6.20 (0.42) 3.43
Asset Turns 1.24 1.14 1.64
OROA % 7.7 (0.5) 5.6

00 01 02
Avg Assets $MM 903% 9678 7147
Cost of Assets $MM (1085) (1162) (858)
Op Profit $MM 693 (46) 401
SVA $MM (392) (1208) (457)

AGRICULTURAL EQUIPMENT

00 01 02
Normal Sales % 88 87 93
Net Sales $MM 5934 6269 6738
Op Profit $MM 400 257 439
Avg Assets $MM 4889 5020 3789
Op Margin % 6.74 4.10 6.52
Asset Turns 1.21 1.25 1.78
CROA % 8.2 5.1 11.6

00 01 02
Avg Assets $MM 4889 5020 3789
Cost of Assets $MM (587) (603) (455)
Op Profit $MM 400 257 439
SVA $MM (187) (346) (16)

Deere Enterprise
Sharehoider Vatue Added
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Why does SVA matter? Because as diligent
stewards of our investors’ money, we are embracir
much higher standards of performance everywher
our pursuit of sustained SVA creation. Such cleai
standards qfenduring performance, rooted in
integrity and reflecting a superior fohn Deere
Experience for customers and employees worldwic
promote a shared passion for building a great
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BuIlLDING A GREAT BUSINESS:
ENTERPRISE FINANCIAL METRICS

JOHN DEERE EVALUATES ITS BUSINESS
RESULTS WITH A METRIC KNOWN AS
SHAREHOLDER VALUE ADDED (SVA).
SVA 1S, IN EFFECT, THE PRETAX PROFIT
LEFT OVER AFTER SUBTRACTING THE
COST OF ENTERPRISE CAPITAL.

IN ARRIVING AT SVA | EACH EQUIPMENT
SEGMENT IS ASSESSED A PRETAX COST OF
ASSETS — 12% OF AVERAGE IDENTIFIABLE
OPERATING ASSETS WITH INVENTORY AT
STANDARD COST. EACH FINANCIAL SERVICES
BUSINESS (CREDIT AND HEALTH CARE) IS
ASSESSED A SPECIFIC PRETAX COST OF
EQUITY. ON A BLENDED BASIS, THIS COST

1S APPROXIMATELY 19% OF AVERAGE EQUITY
(OR 12.3% AFTER-TAX).

THE AMOUNT OF SVA 1S THEN DETERMINED
BY DEDUCTING EACH EQUIPMENT SEGMENT’S
COST OF ASSETS FROM OPERATING PROFIT
{OR ADDING IT TO AN OPERATING LOSS),
AND, IN FINANCIAL SERVICES, BY DEDUCTING
THE COST OF EQUITY FROM SVA INCOME.

CoMMERCIAL & CONSUMER EQUIPMENT

00 01 02
Norma! Sales % 88 72 77
Net Sales $MM 2774 2527 2712
Op Profit $MM 167 (165) 79
Avg Assets $MM 2385 2634 1666
‘Op Margin % 6.02 (6.53) 2.91
Asset Turns 1.16 9.96 1.63
OROA % 7.0 (6.3) 4.7
00 01 02
Avg Assets $MM 2385 2634 1666
iCost of Assets $MM  (286) (316) (200)
Op Profit $MM 167 (165) 79
SVA $MM (119) (481) (121)
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& Company 2002 Annual

FINANCIAL SERVICES

Report

TO CREATE SVA, DEERE FINANCIAL SERVICES ARE
TARGETING AN AFTER-TAX RETURN ON AVERAGE

EQUITY OF 15%.

THE FINANCIAL SERVICES SVA METRIC 1S CALCULATED

ON A PRETAX BASIS, WITH CERTAIN ADJUSTMENTS.

OPERATING PROFIT IS ADJUSTED FOR CHANGES IN
THE ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL RECEIVABLES, WHILE
THE ACTUAL ALLOWANCE 1S ADDED TO THE EQUITY
BASE. THESE ADJUSTMENTS ARE MADE TO REFLECT
ACTUAL WRITE-OFFS IN BOTH INCOME AND EQUITY.

00 01 02
Net Income $MM 173 192 262
Avg Equity $MM 1324 1505 2115
ROE % 13.1 12.8 12.4
$MM 00 01 02
Op Profit 272 298 416
Change In Allowance For
Doubtfui Receivables 13 27 16
SVA Income 285 325 432
Avg Equity 1324 1505 2115
Avg Allowance For
Doubtfui Receivables 103 111 161
SVA Avg Equity 1427 1616 2276
Cost Of Equity {269) (304) (437)
SVA 16 21 (5)

CONSTRUCTION & FORESTRY EQUIPMENT

00 01 02
Normal Sales % 99 89 83
Net Sales $¢MM 2395 2226 2199
Op Profit $MM 183 (83) (75)
Avg Assets $MM 1655 1913 1606
-Op Margin % 7.64 (3.73) (3.41)
Asset Turns 1.45 1.16 1.37
‘OROA % 11.1 (4.3) (4.7)

00 0t 02
Avg Assets $MM 1655 1913 1606
‘Cost of Assets $MM  (199) (229) (192)
Op Profit $MM 183 (83) (75)
SVA $MM (16) (312) (267)
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RESULTS OF CPERATIONS FOR THE YEARS ENDED
OCTOBER 31, 2002, 2007 AND 2000

Deere & Company and its subsidiaries manufacture, distribute
and finance a full line of agricultural equipment; a variety of
commercial and consumer equipment; a broad range of equipment
for construction and forestry; and other technological products and
services. The company also provides credit services and managed
health care plans. Additional information on the structure of these
operations and the business segments is presented in Notes 1 and 27
to the consolidated financial statements.

2002 COMPARED WiTH 2001

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

Worldwide net income in 2002 was $319 million, or $1.33 per
share diluted ($1.34 basic), compared with a net loss of $64 million,
or $.27 per share diluted ($.27 basic), in 2001. Special charges of
$46 million, or $.18 per share diluted, in 2002 and $217 million,
or $.91 per share diluted, in 2001, had a negative impact on the
results for the respective years. These charges were related to the
costs of closing and restructuring certain facilities in both years
and a voluntary early-retirement program last year (see Note 2).
Excluding these costs, income in 2002 more than doubled to
$365 million, or $1.51 per share diluted, compared with income
of $153 million, or $.64 per share diluted, in 2001. Better price
realization as well as the favorable impact of the company’s broad-
based cost and expense reduction initiatives were the primary
drivers of the improved results in 2002. In addition, favorable
customer response to new products contributed to achieving
higher sales and more efficient production levels. These factors,

in conjunction with a $323 million reduction in trade receivables
and inventories helped generate consolidated cash flow from
operations of $1.9 billion for the year, well above 2001 level.

Net sales and revenues increased 5 percent to $13,947 mullion
in 2002, compared with $13,293 million in 2001, primarily due to
higher net sales. Net sales of the Equipment Operations increased
6 percent in 2002 to §11,703 million from $11,077 million last
year. The sales increase reflected higher overseas sales of agricultural
equipment, especially in Europe, the impact of acquisitions net of
divestitures and higher sales of commercial and consumer equip-
ment. Sales were down for construction and forestry equipment
(excluding acquisitions) and also for agricultural equipment in
the United States and Canada. Overseas sales rose by 19 percent in
2002 due to higher agricultural equipment sales mainly in Europe.
Without the effect of foreign exchange rate changes, overseas sales
would have been up 18 percent for the year.

Worldwide Equipment Operations, which exclude the
Financial Services operations, had an operating profit of $401 mllion
in 2002, compared with an operating loss of $46 million in 2001.
Excluding costs of the special items noted above, the Equipment
Operations had an operating profit of $473 million in 2002,
compared to $295 million in 2001. Excluding special items,
operating profit increased primarily due to improved price
realization, cost and expense reductions, higher sales of agricultural
and commercial and consumer equipment, and the absence of
losses from the Homelite consumer products business, which was
sold. Partially offsetting these factors were the compensation to
credit for financing trade receivables (see Note 1), higher new

product start-up costs, and costs associated with Nortrax,

a venture involved in the ownership and development of several
construction equipment dealer locations. Also having a negative
impact on this year’s results were higher postretirement benefit
costs, before special items, as well as lower sales and production
volumes at core construction and forestry manufacturing facilities
in Dubuque and Davenport, lowa.

The Equipment Operations’ net income was $78 million in
2002, compared with a net loss of $238 million in 2001 (see Note
29). Before special items, the income was $124 million in 2002,
compared with a loss of $23 million in 2001. The same operating
factors mentioned above affected these results. In addition, the
2002 results benefited from lower interest expense, while a higher
tax rate had a negative effect.

Net income of the company’s Financial Services operations
in 2002 was $262 million, compared with $192 million in 2001
{see Note 29). The increase was primarily due to the income
earned on the trade receivables financed by the credit operations,
increased gains on the sales of retail notes and improved interest
rate spreads. Additional information is presented in the following
discussion of the credit operations. Health care premiums and
fees and related health care claims and costs increased this year,
compared to last year, primarily from increases in enrollment,
premium increases and medical cost inflation.

The cost of sales to net sales ratio for 2002 was 82.0 percent,
compared to 84.6 percent last year. Before special items, the ratio
was 81.4 percent this year, compared to 82.3 percent last vear.
The decrease in the ratio excluding special items was primarily due
to the higher level of production and improved price realization,
partially offset by higher costs related to new product start-up,
Nortrax and postretirement benefits.

Research and development expenses decreased this year,
compared to last year when the company was introducing an
unprecedented number of new products. Interest expense
decreased this year due primarily to lower average borrowing
rates. Other operating expenses increased this vear, primarily as a
result of losses from the Argentine operations related to the peso
devaluation. Other income increased, compared to last year,
primarily due to increased gains from sales of retail notes and
the receipt of fire insurance settlements.

BUSINESS SEGMENT AND GECGRAPHKIC AREA RESULTS

The following discussion of operating results by reportable
segment and geographic area relates to information in Note 27,
Operating profit is income before external interest expense,
foreign exchange gains or losses, income taxes and corporate
expenses. However, operating profit of the credit segment includes
the effect of interest expense and foreign exchange gains or losses.

Worldwide Agricultural Equipment Operations

The agricultural equipment segment had an operating profit

of $439 million in 2002, compared with $257 million in 2001.
Excluding the costs of special items, the operating profit was
$451 million in 2002, compared with $354 million in 2001.

Net sales increased 7 percent this year due to higher overseas sales,
especially in Europe, where a record number of new products were
introduced last fall. Partially offsetting the increase were lower
United States and Canada sales for the year.




The operating profit improvement before special items was
primarily due to improved price realization and higher sales and
production volumes, as well as cost and expense reductions.
Partially offsetting these factors were the compensation to credit for
tinancing trade receivables and higher postretirement benefit costs.
In addition, the 2002 results were negatively affected by higher
new product start-up costs. Reflecting the segment’s commitment
to more-disciplined asset management, company-owned and field
inventory levels were down $120 million for the year in spite of
the impact of stronger foreign currency exchange rates.

Worldwide Commercial and Consumer Equipment Operations
The commercial and consumer equipment segment had an
operating profit of $79 million, compared with an operating loss
of $165 million in 2001. Excluding the costs of special items, the
operating profit was $103 million in 2002, compared with an
operating loss of $5 million in 2001. Net sales increased 7 percent
for the year or 6 percent without acquisitions and divestitures.
The operating profit improvement before special items
was mainly due to the absence of losses from Homelite, higher
sales, Jower sales incentive costs, lower expenses and the receipt
of fire insurance settlements. Partially offsetting these factors
was the compensation to credit for financing trade receivables.
Company-owned and field inventory reductions totaled $204
million for the year.

Worldwide Construction and Forestry Operations

The construction and forestry segment had an operating loss of
$75 million in 2002, compared with an operating loss of $83 million
in 2001. Excluding the costs of special items, the operating loss was
$48 million in 2002, compared with break-even results in 2001.
Sales decreased 1 percent for the year. Excluding the impact of
acquisitions, sales decreased 6 percent. Production volumes at

core facilities were down 8 percent for the year.

The deterioration in operating results before special items
was primarily due to higher sales incentive costs, higher costs
related to the investment in Nortrax, and the lower sales and
production volumes from core operations. Also having a negative
impact on this year’s results were higher postretirement benefit costs.
Partially offsetting these factors were cost and expense reductions.

Worldwide Credit Operations

The operating profit of the credit operations was $386 million

n 2002, compared with $274 million in 2001. Excluding the
costs of special items, operating profit was $277 million in 2001.
Operating profit in 2002 was higher than in 2001 due primarily
to income earned on trade receivables, increased gains on sales of
retail notes and improved interest rate spreads, partially offset by
an increase in the provision for credit losses and losses related to
the peso devaluation in Argentina. Total revenues of the credit
operations increased 9 percent in 2002, primarily reflecting the
intercompany interest compensation received from the Equipment
Operations related to trade receivables financed (see Note 1). The
average balance of receivables and leases financed was 22 percent
higher in 2002, compared with 2001, primarily due to the trade
receivables mentioned above. A decrease in average borrowing
rates in 2002 resulted in a 16 percent decrease in interest

expense, compared with 2001. The credit operations’ ratio of
earnings to fixed charges was 1.85 to 1 in 2002, compared to
1.51 to 1 in 2001.

Woridwide Other Operations

The company’s other operations had an operating loss of $12 nullion
in 2002, compared with $31 million last year. Excluding the costs
of special itens, the operating loss was $3 million in 2002, compared
with $30 million in 2001. Results for both years were adversely
affected by costs related to the development of new products

and goodwill amortization of the special technologies operations.
The decreased loss in 2002 was primarily due to cost and expense
reductions in the technologies businesses and improved results of
the health care operations mainly due to larger enrollment.

United States and Canada Equipment Operations

The United States and Canada equipment operations had an
operating profit of $170 million in 2002, compared with an
operating loss of $164 million in 2001. Excluding the costs of
special items, the operating profit was $231 million, compared
with $168 million last year. The increase before special items
was primarily due to improved price realization, lower costs and
expenses, the absence of losses from Homelite, higher sales of
commercial and consumer equipment and the receipt of fire
insurance settlements. Partially offsetting these items were the
compensation to the credit operations for financing trade
receivables, higher postretirement benefit costs, lower sales and
production volumes at construction and forestry core facilities,
and higher costs related to the Nortrax investment. Sales increased
1 percent in 2002 while the physical volume of sales decreased
3 percent, compared to 2001.

Qverseas Equipment Operations

The overseas equipment operations had an operating profit of
$231 million in 2002, compared with §118 million in 2001.
Excluding the costs of special items, the operating profit was
$242 million in 2002, compared with $127 million last year.
The increase was primarily due to higher sales and production
volumes driven by favorable customer response to new products,
especially in Europe. Lower expenses also benefited results.
Partially offsetting these factors were higher start-up costs.
Overseas sales were 19 percent higher than last year, while the
physical volume of sales increased 14 percent in 2002, compared
with 2001.

MARKET CONDITIONS AND OUTLOOK

Based on the market conditions outlined below, net equipment
sales for the first quarter of 2003 are currently forecast to be up
20 to 25 percent from the same period last year, with company-
wide net income from zero to $50 million. The company expects
equipment sales for the full year to be up 8 to 10 percent and
enterprise net income to be in a range of $500 million to

$600 million. This includes the favorable impact of approximately
$53 million, after-tax, from the first-quarter adoption of Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statement No. 142, Goodwill
and Other Intangible Assets, eliminating goodwill expense.



The company’s yearly earnings estimate also includes
higher pension and postretirement benefit expense of between
$250 million to $300 million pretax, as the company is modifying
its assumptions to reflect recent trends in medical inflation, interest
rates and equity returns. This compares with an increase in that
expense in 2002 of approximately $115 million, before special items.
Agricultural Equipment: Although commodity prices softened
this fall, they remain well above year-ago levels and are helping
support positive fundamentals in the global farm sector. In the
United States and Canada, however, machinery sales have
continued to lag mainly due to dry weather conditions and poor
crop production in many key areas. In addition, while recently
enacted legislation is generally supportive of higher farm income,
some farmers are feeling near term cash flow pressure due to the
absence of emergency government payments. As a result, the
company believes that retail activity may be slow early in 2003
but will gather momentum in conjunction with spring planting
and be higher for the year. In other areas, the company’ sales in
Western Europe are expected to grow in 2003 as the company
builds on last year’s strong response to newly introduced products
and further increases its presence in this important region.
The company’s sales in Australia are expected to be down due to
drought conditions, while South American sales are forecast to be
about the same as last year due to the uncertain economic situation
in Brazil. As a result of these factors, worldwide sales of John Deere
agricultural equipment are forecast to be up about 8 percent for
the year.
Commercial and Consumer Equipment: Shipments of
John Deere commercial and consumer equipment are projected
to be up about 15 percent for the year. Supporting the improved
outlook is a recent strengthening in retail activity as well as
the expected success of the new 100-series line of John Deere
lawn tractors that will be available in the spring. Because of the
company’s efforts in 2001 and 2002 to reduce field inventories,
sales are also expected to benefit from producing more in line
with retail demand.
Construction and Forestry: The company believes that
construction equipment markets will continue to be pressured
by lagging business investment and general weakness in sales to
independent rental companies. Global forestry markets are expected
to remain sluggish as well. In this environment, the company’s
sales of construction and forestry equipment are forecast to be up
about 2 percent for the year. In May 2002, under a new marketing
agreement with Hitachi Construction Machinery Co., Ltd., the
company began distributing Hitachi brand construction equipment
in the United States and Canada and mining equipment in the
Americas. Excluding these sales from both years, the segment’s sales
are expected to decline approximately 2 percent.
Credit Operations: Credit results for 2003 are expected to
benefit from lower write-offs, growth in the loan portfolio and
stable margins. On this basis, net income for the year is projected
to increase more than 20 percent, to about $300 million.
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FASB STATEMENT NO. 142

In June 2001, the FASB issued Statement No. 142, Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets, which requires goodwill related to acqui-
sitions after June 30, 2001 to not be amortized and only written
down for impairments. Upon adoption of Statement No. 142,
the same accounting requirements will apply to goodwill related to
acquisitions prior to June 30,2001. The Company will adopt this
Staternent in the first quarter of fiscal 2003. In 2002, the Company
had goodwill amortization of $58 million pretax and $53 million
after-tax. Except for the discontinuance of the amortization of
goodwill, the company does not expect the adoption of this
statement to have a material effect on the company’s financial
position or net income (see Note 1).

SAFE HARBOR STATEMENT

Safe Harbor Statement under the Private Securities Litigation Reform
Act of 1995: Statements under “Market Conditions and Outlook,”
and other statements herein that relate to future operating periods
are subject to important risks and uncertainties that could cause
actual results to differ materially. Some of these risks and uncer-
tainties could affect particular lines of business, while others could
affect all of the company’s businesses.

Forward looking statements involve certain factors that
are subject to change, including for the company’s agricultural
equipment segment the many interrelated factors that affect
farmers’ confidence, including worldwide demand for agricultural
products, world grain stocks, prices realized for commodities and
livestock, weather conditions, government farm programs, animal
diseases, crop pests and harvest yields. Factors that are particularly
important to the company’s outlook for this segment include
prices realized by farmers for their crops and livestock, which in
turn are strongly impacted by weather and soil conditions and
the level of farm product exports, as well as the level of payments
under United States government farm programs and political
and economic developments in Brazil and other South American
countries. Further outbreaks of “mad cow” or “foot-and-mouth”
disease could also adversely affect livestock and feed prices.
Concerns pertaining to genetically modified organisms, or
GMOs, may affect farm exports. The success of the fall harvest
and the prices realized by farmers for their crops especially affect
retail sales of agricultural equipment in the winter.

Factors affecting the company’s outlook for its commercial
and consumer equipment business include general economic
conditions in the United States, consumer confidence, consumer
borrowing patterns and weather conditions. Another important
assumption is continued consumer acceptance of the company’s
new products. Sales of commerctal and consumer equipment
during the winter are also affected by the amount and timing
of snowfall.

The number of housing starts is especially important to
sales of the company’s construction equipment. The results of the
company’s construction and forestry segment are also impacted
by levels of public construction and non-residential construction.
Prices for pulp, lumber and structural panels are important to sales
of forestry equipment.



All of the company’s businesses are affected by general
economic conditions in and the political stability of global markets
in which the company operates (including Brazil, Argentina and
other South American countries), monetary and fiscal policies
of various countries, actions by the United States Federal Reserve
Board and other central banks, actions by the United States
Securities and Exchange Conunission and other regulatory bodies,
actions by rating agencies, capital market disruptions, investor
sentiment, inflation and deflation rates, interest rate levels and
currency exchange rates; customer borrowing and repayment
practices, and the number of customer loan delinquencies and
defaults; actions of competitors in the various industries in which
the company competes, particularly price discounting; dealer
practices especially as to levels of new and used field inventories;
production and technological difficulties, including capacity and
supply constraints; energy prices and supplies; labor relations;
changes to accounting standards; the effects of terrorism and
the response thereto; wars and other international conflicts; and
legislation affecting the sectors in which the company operates.
Company results are also affected by significant changes in health
care costs and in market values of investment assets which impact
pension expenses.

The company’s outlook 15 based upon assumptions relating
to the factors described above, which are sometimes based upon
estimates and data prepared by government agencies. Such estimates
and data are often revised. The company, however, undertakes no
obligation to update or revise its outlook, whether as a result of
new developments or otherwise. Further information concerning
the company and its businesses, including factors that potentially
could materially affect the company’s financial results, is included
in other filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

2001 COMPARED WiTH 2000

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

The company had a net loss in 2001 of $64 million, or

$.27 per share diluted ($.27 basic). Affecting the results in 2001
were charges of $217 million, or $.91 per share diluted, related

to early-retirement programs, the decision to exit the hand-held
consumer products business and the restructuring of certain
construction and forestry manufacturing and marketing operations
(see Note 2). Excluding these special items, income for 2001

was $153 million, or $.64 per share diluted, compared with net
income of $486 million, or $2.06 per share diluted ($2.07 basic),
in 2000. In addition, results for 2001 were negatively affected by
weakness in the company’s major markets and by deep production
cutbacks, particularly during the fourth quarter, aimed at achieving
more efficient asset levels.

Net sales and revenues increased 1 percent to $13,293 million
in 2001, compared with $13,137 million in 2000, due to higher
Financial Services revenues. Net sales of the Equipment Operations
decreased 1 percent in 2001 to $11,077 million from $11,169
million in 2000. Sales decreased primarily due to lower shipments
of commercial and consumer equipment and construction and
forestry equipment, as well as the impact of a stronger United States
dollar. Partially offsetting these factors were higher sales of
agricultural equipment and the inclusion of recent acquisitions.
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Compared with 2000, overseas sales increased by 2 percent for
2001, primarily due to higher agricultural equipment sales and
the full-year inclusion of Timberjack, acquired in April 2000.
Partially offsetting these factors were the impact of the stronger
United States dollar and lower sales of commercial and consumer
equipment and construction and forestry equipment (excluding
Timberjack).

Worldwide Equipment Operations, which exclude the
Financial Services operations and unconsolidated affiliates, had a
net loss of $238 million in 2001. Excluding costs of the special
itemns noted above, the Equipment Operations had a loss of
$23 million, compared with net income of $311 mullion in 2000.
Reesults without special items were adversely affected by the
manufacturing inefficiencies resulting from lower production
volumes of the commercial and consumer equipment and the
construction and forestry segments, as well as fourth-quarter
production cutbacks in the agricultural equipment segment.

In addition, higher research and development costs and start-up
costs associated with new products had a negative impact on

the results. Also having an adverse effect were the stronger
United States dollar, higher interest costs and a less favorable

tax rate. Partially offsetting these items were lower pension and
postretirement benefit costs. Trade receivables and inventories were
also reduced by approximately $400 million in 2001, excluding
acquisitions, with the bulk of the decline in the fourth quarter.
The operating loss from Equipment Operations was $46 million
in 2001. Before special items, the operating profit for 2001 was
$295 million, compared to $693 million in 2000.

Net income of the company’s Financial Services operations
in 2001 was $192 million, compared with $173 million in 2000.
Finance and interest income increased in 2001, compared to the
prior year, due to a larger average receivable and lease portfolio.
Additional information is presented in the discussion of the credit
operations. Health care premiums and fees and related health care
claims and costs increased in 2001, compared to 2000, primarily
from increases in enrollment.

Interest expense increased in 2001, compared to 2000, due
primarily to higher average borrowings. Other operating expenses
increased in 2001, primarily as a result of an increase in the
depreciation of equipment on operating leases, write-offs of
certain investments in 2001 and increased cost of services.

Other income increased in 2001, compared to 2000, primarily
due to increased sales of retail notes, increased service revenues
and gains on the sales of certain property and equipment.

BUSINESS SEGMENT RESULTS

The agricultural equipment segment had an operating profit of
$257 million in 2001. Excluding the costs of the early-retirement
programs, the operating profit was $354 million, compared with
$400 million in 2000. Net sales were 6 percent higher in 2001.
As planned, this segment implemented deep production cutbacks
during the fourth quarter of 2001 to achieve more efficient asset
levels. Production of large tractors at the Waterloo manufacturing
complex was shut down for six weeks in the quarter, while the
output of combines, cotton pickers and other products were
reduced as well. Factories in North America were idled more
than one fourth of the available days in the quarter. Excluding the



special items noted above, the decrease in operating profit in 2001
was primarily due to the lower sales and production volumes and
related manufacturing inefficiencies during the fourth quarter, as
well as start-up and other costs associated with the introduction of
a record number of new products. Higher planned research and
development costs and the stronger United States dollar also had a
negative impact on the results, Partially offsetting these items were
lower pension and other postretirement benefit costs, as well as
higher sales in 2001.

The commercial and consumer equipment segment had
an operating loss of $194 million in 2001. Excluding the costs
related to the decision to exit the hand-held consumer products
business and the early-retirement programs, the operating loss
was $31 million, compared to an operating profit of $159 million
in 2000, Net sales declined 10 percent in 2001 or 15 percent
without acquisitions. The decreases were due to lower retail sales
and further dealer inventory reductions facilitated by planned,
deep production cuts. Overall production volumes were
approximately 40 percent lower in the fourth quarter of 2001
than a year earlier. Before the previously mentioned special items,
operating results declined due mainly to the impact of lower sales
and production volumes and related manufacturing inefhiciencies,
in addition to start-up costs for new products and facilities.

The construction and forestry segment had an operating loss
of $54 mullion in 2001. Excluding costs related to the restructuring
of the marketing and manufacturing operations and the early-
retirement programs, the operating profit was $26 million in 2001,
compared to $191 million in 2000. Sales decreased 5 percent in
2001. Excluding Timberjack, sales declined 16 percent, due to
the difficult retail sales environment. Sales to independent rental
companies were down significantly due to extreme weakness in
the rental sector. Operating results deteriorated primarily due
to the lower production volumes and related manufacturing
inefficiencies, higher sales incentive costs and higher losses from
unconsolidated subsidiaries.

The operating profit of the credit operations was $274 million
in 2001. Excluding early-retirement costs, operating profit was
$277 million, compared with $254 million in 2000. Operating profit
in 2001 was higher than in 2000 due primarily to higher earnings
from a larger receivable and lease portfolio and improved interest
rate spreads, partially offset by an increase in the provision for credit
losses. Total revenues of the credit operations increased 9 percent
in 2001, reflecting the larger average portfolio, compared with
2000.The average balance of receivables and leases financed was
12 percent higher in 2001, compared with 2000. An increase in
average borrowings in 2001 resulted in a 3 percent increase in
Interest expense, compared with 2000. The credit operations’ ratio
of earnings to fixed charges was 1.51 to 1 in 2001, compared to
1.49 to 1 in 2000. Depreciation expense on operating leases also
ncreased in 2001.

The company’s other operations had an operating loss
of $31 million in 2001. Excluding early-retirement costs, the
operating loss was $30 million, compared with an operating loss
of $39 million in 2000. Results for both years were adversely
affected by costs related to the development of new products
and goodwill amortization of the special technologies operations.
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The decreased loss in 2001 was primarily due to lower costs for
the development of new products in special technologies and
improved results of the health care operations.

CAPITAL RESOURCES AND LiQUIDITY

The discussion of capital resources and liquidity has been organized
to review separately, where appropriate, the company’s Equipment
Operations, Financial Services operations and the consolidated totals.

EQUIPMENT OPERATIONS

The company’s equipment businesses are capital intensive and are
subject to large seasonal variations in financing requirements for
inventories and certain receivables from dealers. At 2001 fiscal
year end, the Equipment Operations began selling most of its trade
receivables to the company’s credit operations, which decreased
the seasonal variations in financing requirements. To the extent
necessary, funds provided from operations are supplemented by
external borrowing sources.

In October 2001, the Equipment Operations in the
United States sold $2.2 billion of trade receivables to Deere
Capital, Inc. (DCI), 2 wholly-owned subsidiary included in the
credit operations and continued to sell trade receivables to the
credit operations on an ongoing basis in 2002. During the fourth
quarter of 2002, the overseas Equipment Operations also began
selling trade receivables to John Deere Finance S.A., a wholly-
owned overseas subsidiary included in the credit operations
(see Notes 1 and 26).

Cash provided by operating activities during 2002 was
$1,388 million (see Note 29).The operating cash flows and a
$328 million increase in borrowings were used primarily to increase
cash and cash equivalents by $1,331 million, fund purchases of
property and equipment of $355 million and the payment of
dividends to stockholders of $209 million.

Ovwer the last three years, operating activities have provided
an aggregate of $4,557 million in cash. In addition, borrowings
increased $1,591 million. The aggregate amount of these cash flows
was used mainly to fund purchases of property and equipment of
$1,254 million, acquisitions of businesses for $959 million, an
increase in the investment in Financial Services of $700 million and
stockholders’ dividends of $621 million. Cash and cash equivalents
also increased $3,200 nullion over the three-year period.

Trade receivables held by the Equipment Operations
decreased by $141 million during 2002, primarily due to the
overseas sales of trade receivables to the credit operations
(see following consolidated discussion).

Inventories decreased by $134 million in 2002. Most of
these inventories are valued on the last-in, first-out (LIFO) method.
The ratios of inventories valued on an approximate current cost
basis to the last 12 months’ cost of sales were 24 percent at
October 31, 2002, compared to 27 percent at October 31, 2001.

Total interest-bearing debt of the Equipment Operations
was $3,387 million at the end of 2002, compared with $2,984
million at the end of 2001 and $2,645 million at the end of 2000.
The ratio of total debt to total capital {total interest-bearing debt
and stockholders’ equity) at the end of 2002, 2001 and 2000 was
52 percent, 43 percent and 38 percent, respectively. However, due
to the increase in cash and cash equivalents, the ratio at the end of




2002, 2001 and 2000 of net debt (interest-bearing debt less cash
- and cash equivalents) to total net debt and stockholders’ equity
was zero, 18 percent and 32 percent, respectively.

During 2002, the Equipment Operations issued $700 million
of 6.95% global notes due in 2014 and entered into interest
rate swaps related to these notes, which swapped the fixed rate
to a variable rate of approximately 2.8% at October 31, 2002.
The Equipment Operations issued $8 million and retired
$76 million of other long-term borrowings.

FINANCIAL SERVICES

The Financial Services’ credit operations rely on their ability to
raise substantial amounts of funds to finance their receivable and
lease portfolios. Their primary sources of funds for this purpose
are a combination of borrowings and equity capital. Additionally,
the credit operations periodically sell substantial amounts of
retail notes.

Cash flows from the company’s Financial Services operating
activities were $770 million in 2002 (see Note 29). Cash provided
by investing activities totaled $59 million in 2002, primarily due to
sales of receivables of $2,968 million, partially offset by receivable
acquisitions exceeding collections by $2,869 million. The cash
provided by operating and investing activities was used primarily to
decrease total borrowings and pay dividends. Cash used by financing
activities totaled $1,220 million in 2002, representing mainly a
$1,990 mullion decrease in short-term borrowings, including
borrowings from the Equipment Operations, and the payment
of $400 million of dividends, partially offset by a $1,170 million
increase in long-term borrowings. Cash and cash equivalents also
decreased $398 million.

Over the past three years, the Financial Services operating
activities have provided $2,122 million in cash. In addition, the
sale of receivables of $5,674 million, an increase in borrowings
of $3,827 million, the sale of equipment on operating leases of
$1,216 million and a capital investment from the Equipment
Operations of $700 million have provided cash inflows.

These amounts have been used mainly to fund receivable and
lease acquisitions, which exceeded collections by $12,677 million,
and dividends of $437 million.

Receivables and leases decreased by $562 million in 2002,
compared with 2001. Acquisition volumes of receivables and leases
increased 42 percent in 2002, compared with 2001. The volumes
of trade receivables, wholesale notes, operating loans, revolving
charge accounts and retail notes increased approximately 200
percent, 25 percent, 16 percent, 11 percent and 1 percent,
respectively. The credit operations also sold retail notes receiving
proceeds of $2,968 million during 2002, compared with $1,728
million in 2001. At October 31, 2002 and 2001, net receivables
and leases administered, which include receivables and leases
previously sold but still administered, were $15,363 million and
$14,950 million, respectively.

Trade receivables held by the credit operations decreased
by $88 million in 2002 (see following consolidated discussion).

Total external interest-bearing debt of the credit operations
was $10,001 million at the end of 2002, compared with $9,776
million at the end of 2001 and $7,878 million at the end of 2000.
Total external borrowings have increased generally corresponding
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with the level of the receivable and lease portfolio, the level of
cash and cash equivalents and the change in payables owed to
the Equipment Operations. The credit subsidiaries’ ratio of total
interest-bearing debt to total stockholder’s equity was 5.6 to 1 at
the end of 2002, compared with 5.6 to 1 at the end of 2001 and
6.7 to 1 at the end of 2000.

During 2002, the credit operations issued $1,500 million
of 7% global notes due in 2012 and entered into interest rate
swaps related to these notes, which swapped the fixed rate to a
variable rate of approximately 2.8% at October 31, 2002. In 2002,
the credit operations also issued $500 million of 4.5% global
notes due in 2007 and entered into interest rate swaps related to
$450 mullion of these notes, which swapped the fixed rate to a
variable rate of approximately 2.5% as of October 31, 2002.
During 2002, the credit operations retired $300 million of 7%
notes due in 2002. The credit operations issued $1,865 million
and retired $2,395 million of other long-term borrowings,
which were primarily medium-term notes.

In December 2002, the credit operations issued $300
million of 3.1% medium-term notes due in 2005 and entered
into interest rate swaps related to $150 million of these notes,
which swapped the fixed rate to a variable rate of 1.7% as of
December 11, 2002.

CONSOLIDATED

Sources of liquidity for the company include cash and short-term
investments, funds from operations, the issuance of commercial
paper and term debt, the securitization and sale of retail notes,
and committed and uncommitted, unsecured bank lines of credit.

To access public debt capital markets, the company relies on
credit rating agencies to assign short-term and long-term credit
ratings to the company’s securities as an indicator of credit quality
for fixed income investors. A credit rating agency may change
company ratings based on its assessment of the company’s current
and future ability to meet interest and principal repayment
obligations. Such rating changes may impact the availability and
cost of funds.

The short-term and long-term debt ratings assigned to
company securities by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc., Standard &
Poor’s, Fitch Ratings and Donunion Bond Rating Service Limited
are investment grade ratings. On May 28, 2002, Standard & Poor’s
lowered the senior long-term rating of the company to “A-" from
“A)” and the short-term rating to “A-2" from “A-1” At the same
time, Standard & Poor’s removed the ratings from CreditWatch,
where they had been placed on March 11, 2002, and assigned a
stable outlook. On May 24, 2002, Fitch Ratings affirmed the
company’s “A” senior long-term and “F1” short-term ratings,
while maintaining a negative rating outlook. On March 8, 2002,
Dominion Bond Rating Service confirmed the company’s
Canadian “R-1 (low)” short-term and “A” long-term ratings and
placed a negative trend on the company’s Canadian long-term
rating. On February 15, 2002, Moody’s Investors Service lowered
the senior long-term rating of the company to “A-3" from “A-2,
and the short-term rating to “Prime-2" from “Prime-1.” Moody’s
assigned a stable outlook as part of this rating action. Lower credit
ratings generally result in higher borrowing costs and reduced
access to debt capital markets.



The company expects to have sufficient sources of liquidity
to meet its funding needs in both the Equipment Operations and
Financtal Services businesses. The company’s worldwide commercial
paper outstanding at October 31,2002 and 2001 was approximately
$1.8 billion and $3.2 billion, respectively, while the total cash and
short-term investment position was $2.8 billion and $1.0 billion,
respectively. In addition, the company’s credit operations have for
many vears accessed diverse funding sources, including short- and
long-term unsecured debt capital markets in the United States,
Canada, Europe and Australia, as well as public and private
securitization markets in the United States and Canada. In order
to further enhance its liquidity profile, the company has decreased
its commercial paper balances and increased its use of long-term
debt since October 2001. Because of the multiple funding sources
that have been and continue to be available to the company, the
lowering of the company’s credit ratings has not had, and is not
expected to have, a material impact on its ability to fund its
operations and maintain its liquidity.

The company maintains unsecured lines of credit with
various United States and foreign banks. The discussion in
Note 16 provides further information.

Trade accounts and notes receivable arise from sales of goods
to dealers. Trade receivables decreased by $189 million in 2002.
Total worldwide agricultural equipment trade receivables decreased
$70 million, commercial and consumer equipment receivables
decreased $132 million, construction and forestry receivables
increased $14 million and other equipment receivables decreased
$1 million. The ratios of trade accounts and notes receivable at
October 31 to fiscal year net sales were 23 percent in 2002,
compared with 26 percent in 2001 and 28 percent in 2000.

The collection period for trade receivables averages less than

12 months. The percentage of receivables outstanding for a
period exceeding 12 months was 6 percent at October 31, 2002,
compared with 11 percent at October 31, 2001 and 8 percent at
QOctober 31, 2000.

Stockholders’ equity was $3,163 million at October 31, 2002,
compared with $3,992 million and $4,302 million at October 31,
2001 and 2000, respectively. The decrease of $829 million resulted
primarily from a minimum pension liability adjustment of
$1,016 million, dividends declared of $209 million and losses
recorded in retained earnings of $32 million related to treasury
stock transactions, partially offset by net income of $319 million,
a decrease in treasury stock of $83 million and an unrealized gain
on derivatives of $25 million. The minimum pension liability
adjustment was recorded based on FASB Statement No. 87,
Employers’ Accounting for Pensions, mainly due to a decrease in
the market value of the pension assets. The treasury stock losses
represent the difference between the cost of treasury shares and
the proceeds from the issuance of these shares primarily for the
exercise of employee stock options.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLIGIES

The preparation of the company’s consolidated financial statements
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect reported amounts of assets, liabilities,

revenues and expenses. Changes in estimates and assumptions
in the policies below could have a significant effect on the
financial statements.

Retirement Benefit Obligations

Pension and other postretirement benefit obligations are based on
various assumptions used by the company’s actuaries in calculating
these amounts. These assumptions include discount rates, health
care cost trend rates, expected return on plan assets, compensation
increases, retirement rates, mortality rates and other factors.

Actual results that differ from the assumptions and changes in
assumptions affect future expenses and obligations. For more
information concerning these costs and obligations see Note 3.

Allowance for Credit Losses

The allowance for credit losses represents an estimate of the losses
expected from the company’s receivable portfolio. The level of the
allowance is based on many factors, including collection experience,
economic conditions and credit risk quality. The adequacy of the
allowance s assessed quarterly. Different assumptions or changes
in economic conditions would result in changes to the credit
allowance and the provision for credit losses.

Operating Lease Residual Values

The carrying value of equipment on operating leases is affected by
the estimated fair values of the equipment at the end of the lease

(residual values). Upon termination of the lease, the equipment is

either purchased by the lessee or sold to a third party, in which case
the company may record a gain or a loss for the difference between
the estimated residual value and the sale price. The residual values
are dependent on current economic conditions and are reviewed

quarterly. Changes in residual value assumptions would affect the

amount of depreciation expense and the amount of investment in
equipment on operating leases.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT RISK INFORMATICN

The company is naturally exposed to various interest rate and
foreign currency risks. As a result, the company enters into
derivative transactions to manage certain of these exposures that
arise in the normal course of business and not for the purpose

of creating speculative positions or trading. The company’s credit
operations manage the relationship of the types and amounts of
their funding sources to their receivable and lease portfolio in an
effort to diminish risk due to interest rate and foreign currency
fluctuations, while responding to favorable financing opportunities.
Accordingly, from time to time, these operations enter into interest
rate swap agreements to manage their interest rate exposure.

The company also has foreign currency exposures at some of its
foreign and domestic operations related to buying, selling and
financing in currencies other than the local currencies. The company
has entered into agreements related to the management of these
currency transaction risks. The credit risk under these interest rate
and foreign currency agreements is not considered to be significant.
Additional detailed financial instrument information is included
in Note 25.
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Interest Rate Risk

Quarterly, the company uses a combination of cash flow models
to assess the sensitivity of its financial instruments with interest
rate exposure to changes in market interest rates. The models
calculate the effect of adjusting interest rates as follows. Cash flows
for financing receivables are discounted at the current prevailing
rate for each receivable portfolio. Cash flows for borrowings are
discounted at the treasury yield curve plus a market credit spread
for similarly rated borrowers. Cash flows for interest rate swaps
are projected and discounted using forecasted rates from the swap
yield curve at the repricing dates. The net loss in these financial
instruments’ fair values which would be caused by decreasing the
interest rates by 10 percent from the market rates at October 31,
2002 and 2001 would have been approximately $35 nullion and
$53 million, respectively.

Foreign Currency Risk
In the Equipment Operations, it is the company’ practice to
hedge significant currency exposures. Worldwide foreign currency
exposures are reviewed monthly. Based on the Equipment
Operations anticipated and committed foreign currency cash
inflows and outflows for the next twelve months and the foreign
currency derivatives at year end, the company estimates that a
hypothetical 10 percent strengthening of the United States dollar
relative to all other currencies through 2003 would decrease the
2003 expected net cash inflows by $28 million. Similar
assumptions and calculations indicated a potential $13 million
adverse effect on the 2002 net cash inflows.

In the Financial Services operations, the company’s
policy is to hedge the foreign currency risk if the currency of
the borrowings does not match the currency of the receivable
portfolio. As a result, a hypothetical 10 percent adverse change in
the value of the United States dollar relative to all other foreign
currencies would not have a material effect on the Financial
Services cash flows.
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REPORT OF MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The consolidated financial statements and other financial
information of Deere & Company in this report were prepared by
management, which is responsible for their contents. They reflect
amounts based upon management’s best estimates and informed
judgments. In management’s opinion, the financial statements
present fairly the financial position, results of operations and cash
flows of the company in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

The company maintains a system of internal accounting
controls and procedures which is intended, consistent with
reasonable cost, to provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are executed as authorized, that they are included in the financial
records in all material respects, and that accountability for assets is
maintained. The accounting controls and procedures are supported
by careful selection and training of personnel, examinatons by
an internal auditing department and a continuing management
commitment to the integrity of the system.

The financial staterments have been audited to the
extent required by auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America by Deloitte & Touche LLP, independent
auditors. The independent auditors have evaluated the company’s
internal control structure and performed tests of procedures and
accounting records in connection with the issuance of their report
on the fairness of the financial statements.

The Board of Directors has appointed an Audit Review
Committee composed entirely of directors who are not employees
of the company. The Audit Review Committee meets with
representatives of management, the internal auditing department
and the independent auditors, both separately and jointly.

The Committee discusses with the independent auditors and
approves in advance the scope of the audit, reviews with the
independent auditors the financial statements and their auditors’
report, consults with the internal audit staff and reviews manage-
ment’s administration of the system of internal accounting controls.
The Comumittee reports to the Board on its activities and findings.
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Deioitte
& Touche

Deere & Company:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets
of Deere & Company and subsidiaries as of October 31, 2002 and
2001 and the related statements of consolidated income, changes
in consolidated stockholders’” equity and consolidated cash flows
for each of the three years in the period ended October 31, 2002.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Deere & Company and subsidiaries at October 31, 2002 and
2001 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended October 31, 2002
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

Lo byi e L T Teeekle LL/P

Chicago, Illinois
November 19, 2002



DEeERE & COMPANY

STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED INCOMIE

For the Years Ended October 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000
(In millions of dollars except per share amounts)

2002 2001 2000

Net Sales and Revenues
NEESAIBS ..o et e et $11,702.8 $11,077.4 $11,168.6
Finance and interest income....... 1,339.2 1,445.2 1,321.3
Health care premiums and fees... 636.0 585.0 473.7
Other income 269.0 185.3 173.2

TOMAL .o ettt e ettt s e bR sese e et eSSttt et e 13,9470 13,2929 13,136.8
Costs and Expenses
COSE Of SAIBS........oveerreies it et bbb ees o caaissens e st e bes et b0 s st bbb e 9,593.4 9,376.4 8,936.1
Research and AeVEIOPIMIENE BXDENSES. .....c.verr ittt ettt esaest s ests s sasssas e sas ens s ess s ess st ess st st st b 527.8 590.1 5421
Selling, administrative and GENEIal BXDENSES .........ceverver st setiies it ettt esssc it eas s st b e s 1,657.3 1,716.8 1,504.9
Interest expense 637.1 765.7 676.5
Health care Claims @NG COSTS .uviivriviri it a1 bbb bbb 5184 476.0 3805
OtNEr OPETALING BXDENSES .1 cvvvverrisiensiireser s eesbaes et st b st e bbbt s+t ebs et bt eb et bans 4103 3927 319.2

TOMBE 1ot et R A1 s e R b s 13,3443 13,317.7 12,359.3
Income (Loss) of Consolidated Group Defore INCOME TAXES ........ccc.oovrivercerrienminieee s 602.7 (24.8) 7775
PrOVISION fOr INCOMIE TAXES ....evueeivesseeisen st et e ets st sab e haa e bbbt 10 258.3 17.7 293.8
Income (Loss) of ConSOldRtEd GrOUD.........coocovvreer oot et 344.4 (42.5) 483.7
Equity in Income (Loss) of Unconsolidated Affiliates

0770 | SO OO OO P PSSO SRRSO (3.8) (3.3) 6

6117:) S OO OO TSSO O OTO PSR SOVUORUURSTO (21.4) {(18.2) 12

TOMAL <. ettt e R e e b et s e Rt et et {25.2) {21.5) 18

NER IMCOMIE (LOSS) vovvorcvivier e et csbiv st e e bs b s s 00t v $ 3182 $ (4.0 $ 4855
Per Share Data
NEt INCOME {I08S) = DASIC ... ..o et e st $ 1.34 $ (.27) $ 207
NEt INCOME (108S) = IULBH. .c.vvv.evvv oo et bbbt s st sbas st $§ 133 $ (.27) $ 2086
DIVIJBNAS GECIAMBA. ...v..vvevvvcvoes s e et e s b3 e bbb s e $ .88 $ .88 $ .88

The notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DzERE & COMPANY

CONSCLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
As of Getober 31, 2002 and 2091
(In millions of dollars except per share amounts)

ASSETS

Cash and CASH BQUIVAIBNIS ... e et ebr e a8 et ee bbb st en st sa e
MErKBTADIE SEOUMTIES ...t iee et ettt bbb b bbb b e
Receivables from unconsolidated affiliates
Trade accounts and NOES FECEIVADIE = MBL..........c e et et e e bbb ses
FINANCING FECBIVANIES = NMEL ...ttt et et ottt sttt b s ettt e s
Other receivables
Equipment on operating leases - net
INVEMEONES ...cvvevcer e
Property and equipment - Net..........c.cocon i
Investments in unconsoclidated affiliates
Intangible assets - net
Prepaid pension costs
Other assets.........cccovviviiniiiinnnn,
Deferred income taxes
DETBITEA CHATGES .. vev st e et e b s8Rt bR s8R s

OB @SSBES ...ttt e e e R Rt et b b b0

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

LIABILITIES

SHOM-EEI BOMTOWINTS w...cvevveietstt bt e et ses b1 et b s bbb LAt b be bbbt bbbt b st aen s be s
Payables to unconsolidated affiliates ...............

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Haalth Care ClaimS @NG TBSEIVES ........o.virs ettt et seba et e bbb
ACCTUBH TAXES ... vt cevensers ettt v s e b 1 s bt a3 b 00163421 b 3 ba b 400301 E bbbttt
Deferred income taxes
LONG-TEIM DOITOWINGS ... evvv ettt e ae bt et as s a1t en s ee s et b e s eb bRk b s s bans b s e
Retirement benefit accruals and Other FADIHES .......cer it e bbbt

TOMEIHADIHIES ... er ettt bbb 1k et et et bbb ettt b bt an e

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Common stock, $1 par value (authorized — 600,000,000 shares;

issued — 268,215,602 shares in 2002 and 2001}, at Stated VAIUE ...t st
Common stock in treasury, 29,321,098 shares in 2002 and 30,883,879 shares in 2001, at cost
Unamortized restricted StOCK COMPENSAHON ..ot s s
RELAINEA BAMINGS .. cvvv vt rerscrer e e ottt b s s 008 et b 0 e

Minimum pension liabilty AQJUSIMENE ........c.oier i e e e s ssb s e bbbt et s
Cumulative translation adjustment
UNrealized 10SS ON GBMVALIVES ... .v.ovrviveeererceens et cees e ks s et bt e e
Unrealized gain on Marketable SECUMHES. ....c. v oo ceat e et e st

Accumulated other Comprenensive INCOME (J0SS) ..vevvvvivvivenriieriires st et bs s e e e e

Total SIOCKNOIAETS’ BOUIY. ... vvievriveer st ceemse ettt e s bbb

Total liabilities and stockNOlAErs’ BQUILY ..o e et s

2002

$ 28149
189.2
265.8

2,7336
9,067.5
426.4
1,609.2
1,371.8
1,998.3
180.6
8949
49,6
582.1
1,480.1
94.0

$ 23,768.0

1,957.0
(1,322.2)
(17.9)

39126

4,529.6

(1,032.1)

(293.1)
@7.0)
58

(1,366.4)
3,163.2

$ 23,768.0

20071

$ 10300
176.2
3166

2,922.5
9,198.9
388.9
1,939.3
1,505.7
2,052.3
198.4
874.0
652.0
420.8
883.1

104.4

$ 22,6631

$ 61985
16.6
3,097.3
100.3

441

12.9
6,560.7
2,640.7

18,670.9

19486
(1,405.5)

(16.9)
3,834.8

4,361.1

(1682
(285.5)

(r2.0)
4.8

(368.9)
3992.2

$ 22,663.1

The notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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DEeERE & COMPANY

STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended October 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000
(In mitlions of dollars)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
NELINCOME (J0SS) ... evv et ettt s e e et bbb bbb s bbb s
Adjustments to reconcile net income (l0ss} to net cash provided by operating activities:
Provision for douBtiUl TECEIVADIES ..........eviieeiii et e e
Provision for depreciation and amMOrtiZatiOn ...........c..ccov ittt
Undistributed earnings of unconsolidated affiiates.........cc.cooeeriioniniisisennd s
Credit for deferred INCOME TAXES ... ..vv. ettt e et bs b et aa s e
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Receivables ...
INVEMOMES ..cvvr v
Accounts payable and accrued expenses ...

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
COlECHONS Of TECEIVADIES .........evv e et eb s ettt s st en st ae e ras s
Proceeds from sales of financing receivables
Proceeds from maturities and sales of Marketable SBCUNTIES .........ccccivvir et ces ot e ene s
Proceeds from sales of equipment on operating leases
Proceeds from sale of @ busingss .....cc..ooverieeicnnins
Cost O receiVADIES ACGUITEA ........v.veviieiie e e s et sb s bbb s e e st sab s en s
Purchases Of Marketalle SECUMKIES 1ot bbb bt bbb e
Purchases of property and equipment.
Cost of operating leases acquired...........ccccovveeenn,
Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquired

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Increase (decrease) in short-term borrowings
Proceeds from long-term DOrowings ...co.oeevenne.
Principal payments on long-term borrowings
Proceeds from isSUanCe 0f COMMON SLOCK .........iviurimmiiiericerere et isas e et et amss ot

Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash ... e

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year...................

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

2002 2001 2000
319.2 $ 640 $ 4855
160.7 113.0 75.0
7253 7183 647.9

27 195 12
(1.2) (230.3) (132.9)
158.2 316.9 (53.8)
85.8 136.5 (184.0)
144.0 40.7 540.0
263.6 62.8 (296.5)

18783 11134 1,080.0

6,987.0 6,966.3 6,655.1

2,967.8 1,728.0 978.3

75.4 324 2478
4952 391.7 334.6
535
(9,955.3) (9,795.7) (9,126.5)
(87.8) @5.7) 619
(358.7) 491.0) 426.7)
(487.9) 775.2) (939.9)
(19.0) (315.2) (643.3)
14.8 (112.0) (135.2)
1.0 815 7.4
(314.0) (2,364.9) (3.110.3)
(1413.2) (506.6) 1,785.8
45737 48183 2,814.0
2,771.0) 2,118.5) (2,377.4)
48.0 178 15.9
(1.2 (1.3 (8)
(208.9) (206.5) (206.0)
(1.9 {2.8) 1.3
225.9 2,000.4 2,030.4
5.3) (106) (3.9)

17849 738.3 3.8)

1,030.0 291.7 2955

2,814.9 $ 1,030.0 $ 2017

The notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DEeERE & COMPANY
STATEMENT OF CHANGES N CONSOLIDATED STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY
For the Years Ended Qctober 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002
(In millions of dollars)
Unamortized Other
Total Common Treasury Restricted Retained Comprehensive
Equity Stock Stock Stock* Earnings Income (Loss)
Balance Qctober 31,1989 ... $4,0043 $1,8504 $(1,469.4) $@21.3 $ 3,855.3 $ (1207
Comprehensive income (0ss)
NEEINCOME ... veev ettt 4855 4855
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Minimum pension liability adjustment ............... 104 104
Cumulative translation adjustment {(115.0) (115.0)
Unrealized 10SS 0N inveStMENtS ......ccovvevvoveniens @.5) 4.5)
Total comprehensive iINCOME..........c.....cc..ooevee. 3764
Repurchases of common SOCK.........vvvvverrs e (.6) (.6}
Treasury shares reissued 31. 31.
Dividends declared...........ocovvieeirieriiveiinsecve e (205.49) (205.4)
Other stockholder transactions .............cvineriveicnn 6.2 14.0 10.4 (18.2)
Balance Getober 31, 2000 4,301.9 1,864.4 (1,439.0) (10.9) 4117.2 (229.8)
Comprehensive income {loss)
NEEINCOME (10S9) ..+ vvvreers v et e o 64.0) 64.0)
Other comprehensive income (10ss)
Minimum pension liability adjustment ................ 7.7 7.7
Cumulative translation adjustment ........c...cc...... 63.1) 63.1)
Unrealized 10sS 0N derivativeS .....c..ccoevvveeiennn (72.0) (72.0)
Unrealized gain on investmentS.............cecovenno. 37 37
Total comprehensive income (10SS) ................... (203.1)
Repurchases of common stock............ccoveeiieiirinnnnn, 1.3 (1.3)
Treasury Shares reiSSUEH........o.vr v cnnnnercsnenens 34.8 34.8
Dividends declared (206.1) (206.1)
Acquisition of & DUSINESS ..o 80.5 80.5
Other stockholder transactions ..o vvvenrivviniannnns (14.5) 37 (5.9 (12.3)
Balance Oetober 31,2001 ..o 3,992.2 1,948.6 (1,405.5) (16.9) 38348 (368.9)
Comprehensive income {loss)
NELINCOME ..vcvviriivever e e e 319.2 319.2
Other comprehensive income (0S5}
Minimum pension liability adjustment ................ (1,015.9) (1,015.9
Cumulative translation adjustment ........c........... (7.6) (7.6)
Unrealized gain on derivatives... ... vceerreen . 250 25,
Unrealized gain on investments.........co.ceviveenc 1.0 1.0
Total comprehensive income (10SS)........c.......... (678.3)
Repurchases of common StOCK. .......o..erroririaiir s 1.9 (1.2)
Treasury Shares reisSUT........c..covvierivarrins e 84.5 84.5
Dividends declared. . ......ccocvrvvcvrinniineier s s (209.3) (209.3)
Other stockholder transactions .........coo.cvevvevivennioenns 24.7) 8.4 {1.0) {32.1)
Balance October 31,2802............cc.ccocooveevieenen, $31632 $1,957.0 $(1,322.2) $(17.8) $ 39126 $ (1,366.4)
The notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
*Unamortized restricted stock includes restricted stock issued at market price net of amortization to compensation expense.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following are significant accounting policies in addition to those
included in other notes to the consolidated financial statements.
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements represent the consolidation
of all companies in which Deere & Company has a controlling
interest. Deere & Company records its investment in each
unconsolidated affiliated company (generally 20 to 50 percent
ownership) at its related equity in the net assets of such affiliate.
Other investments (less than 20 percent ownership) are recorded at
cost. Consolidated retained earnings at October 31, 2002 include
undistributed earnings of the unconsolidated athliates of $27 nullion.
Dividends from unconsolidated affiliates were $2 million in 2002,
$2 million in 2001 and $3 million in 2000 (see Note 6).

Special purpose entities (SPEs) related to the sale and
securitization of financing receivables are not consolidated since
the company does not control these entities, and they either meet
the requirements of qualified SPEs under Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) Statement No. 140, Accounting for
Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments
of Liabilities, or the company is not the primary beneficiary of
the SPE (see Note 10).

Certain amounts for prior years have been reclassified
to conform with 2002 financial statement presentations.
Structure of Operations
Certain information in the notes and related commentary are
presented in a format which includes data grouped as follows:

Eguipment Operations — These data include the company’s
agricultural equipment, commercial and consumer equipment,
construction and forestry, and special technologies operations
with Financial Services reflected on the equity basis.

Financial Services — These data include the company’s
credit and health care operations.

Consolidated — These data represent the consolidation of
the Equipment Operations and Financial Services. References
to “Deere & Company” or “the company” refer to the entire
enterprise.

Use of Estimates in Financial Statements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts and related disclosures. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition

Sales of equipment and service parts are recorded when

title and all risk of ownership are transferred to the independent
dealer based on the agreement in effect with the dealer. In the
United States and most international locations, this transfer occurs
when goods are shipped to the dealer. In Canada and some other
international locations, certain goods are shipped to dealers on a
consignment basis under which title and risk of ownership are
not transferred to the dealer. Accordingly, sales are not recorded
until a retail customer has purchased the goods. In all cases, when
a sale is recorded by the company, no significant uncertainty exists
surrounding the purchaser’s obligation to pay and no right of
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return exists. The company makes appropriate provisions based on
experience for costs such as doubtful receivables, sales incentives
and product warranty.

Financing revenue is recorded over the terms of the related
receivables using the interest method. Income from operating
leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the scheduled
lease terms. Health care premiums and fees are recognized as
earned over the terms of the policies or contracts.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The company evaluates the carrying value of long-lived assets
(including property and equipment, goodwill and other intangible
assets) when events and circumstances warrant such a review. If the
carrying value of the long-lived asset is considered impaired, a loss
is recognized based on the amount by which the carrying value
exceeds the fair market value of those assets to be held and used,
or the fair market value less costs to sell for those assets to be sold.
Foreign Currency Translation

The functional currencies for most of the company’s foreign
operations are their respective local currencies. The assets and
liabilities of these operations are translated into United States
dollars at the end of the period exchange rates, and the revenues
and expenses are translated at weighted-average rates for the
period. The gains or losses from these translations are included in
other comprehensive income, which is part of stockholders’ equity.
Gains or losses from transactions denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the subsidiary involved are
included in net income.

New Accounting Standards

In 2001, the company adopted Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF)
Issue No. 00-10, Accounting for Shipping and Handling Fees and
Costs. The Task Force reached a consensus that all shipping and
handling amounts billed to a customer in a sale transaction should
be classified as revenue. Prior to adoption, the company offset the
amounts billed to customers for shipping and handling with the
related costs in cost of sales. The change increased sales and cost
of sales in 2001 by $123 million, or 1 percent, with no effect

on the company’s financial position or net income. It was not
considered practical to reclassify prior years since this information
is captured by many different computer systems around the world.
The increase in sales and cost of sales by quarter for 2001 is
included in Note 28.

The following FASB Statements have been issued, but not
adopted by the company. In 2001, the FASB 1ssued Staterment
No. 141, Business Combinations, and Statement No. 142,
Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. Statement 141 requires the
purchase method of accounting for all business combinations and
eliminates the pooling of interests method effective June 30, 2001.
Statement 142 requires goodwill related to acquisitions after
June 30,2001 not to be amortized and written down only for
impairments. Upon adoption of this Statement, the same
accounting will apply to goodwill related to acquisitions prior
to June 30, 2001. The company will adopt Statement 142 in
the first quarter of fiscal 2003. The company’s amortization of
goodwill during fiscal year 2002 was $58 million pretax and
$53 million after-tax. In 2001, the FASB issued Statement No. 143,



Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations, which requires
legal obligations associated with the retirement of long-lived assets
to be recorded as increases in costs of the related assets. In 2001,
the FASB issued Statement No. 144, Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets. This Statement
retains the previous cash flow test for impairment and broadens
the presentation of discontinued operations. In 2002, the FASB
issued Statement No. 146, Accounting for the Costs Associated
with Exit or Disposal Activities. Statement No. 146 requires
companies to recognize liabilities and costs associated with exit

or disposal activities initiated after December 31, 2002 when they
are incurred, rather than when management commits to a plan to
exit an activity. Except for the discontinuance of the amortization
of goodwill, the company does not expect the adoption of these
Statements to have a material effect on the company’ financial
position or net income.

Significant Events

In October 2001, the Equipment Operations in the United States
sold $2.2 billion of trade receivables to Deere Capital, Inc. (DCI),
a wholly-owned Financial Services subsidiary of John Deere
Capital Corporation. In 2002, these operations continued to sell a
significant portion of newly originated trade receivables to the credit
operations. During 2002, the overseas Equipment Operations also
began selling certain trade receivables to John Deere Finance S.A.,
a wholly-owned overseas Financial Services subsidiary of the
Capital Corporation. The Equipment Operations provided
compensation to the credit operations at market rates of interest
for these receivables during 2002. Although this arrangement

had substantially no effect on consolidated net income, it did shift
net income and operating profit from the Equipment Operations
to the credit operations due to the compensation in 2002.
Responsibility for servicing these recetvables in the United States
was also transferred to the credit operations.

22

2. SPEGIAL ITEMS

In 2002 and the fourth quarter of 2001, the company announced
certain actions aimed at increasing efficiency and reducing costs.
Following are tables of the reserves and liabilities recognized
during these periods and descriptions of these actions.

2002

The reserves and liabilities for special items at October 31 in
millions of dollars and the number of employees to be terminated
were as follows:

Reserves Reserves
and Accruals Liquidations and
Liabilities and and Liabilities
2001 Adjustments  Payments 2032
Property and
equipment
TESEIVES ..vvrvvvverrieens $ 38 $ 29 $ (33 $ 34
Inventory reserves.......... 33 5 (36) 2
Termination
benefits.........cccoev.nn 24 12 (25) 11
Contract
terminations .............. 27 12 21) 18
Warranties and
product retumns.......... 16 8 % 1
Other CostS....coceriienan, 7 8 3) 12
Total ......o.ccocvveevia, $ 145 $ 58 $(125) $ 78
2001 Additions Terminated 2002
Employees to
be terminated............ 1,000 900™ (1700) 200

* In addition to these reserves and accruals, the company recognized $3 million of
early-retirement benefits and $11 million of other non-accruable restructuring costs
for a total of $72 million.

** The decrease in the termination henefits liability is not proportional to the employees
terminated since certain benefits related to past services are not paid immediately
upon termination.

The costs for special items in 2002 totaled $72 milkion
consisting of $71 million of cost of sales and $1 million of other
expenses, as discussed below. The beginning liabilities and reserves
shown above relate to special items shown in the following table
for 2001.

In 2002, the company’s commercial and consumer equipment
segment announced plans to close facilities in Williamsburg, Virginia
and Jeffersonville, Indiana and streamline operations at Horicon,
Wisconsin. As a result of these actions, a cost of $38 million was
recognized, partially offset by $14 million of adjustments related to
exiting the hand-held consumer products business (see following
discussion for 2001). The net restructuring cost of $24 million
consisted of property and equipment write-downs of $6 million,
inventory write-downs of $1 million, contract terminations of
$8 million, termination benefits of $3 million for approximately
200 employees and other costs of $6 million.

In 2002, the construction and forestry segment announced
plans to close the Loudon, Tennessee factory and relocate the skid-
steer loader production to its Dubuque, Iowa facility. Primarily as
a result of this closure, a total cost of $27 million was recognized
consisting of property and equipment write-downs of $14 million,




inventory write-downs of $1 million, contract terminations of
$4 million, termination benefits of $4 million for approximately
400 employees and other costs of $4 million.

In 2002, the company’s agricultural equipment segment
recognized $12 million of impairment and reorganization costs
primarily in its Argentina operations consisting of property and
equipment write-downs of $8 million, inventory write-downs of
$2 million, termination benefits of $1 million for approximately
100 employees and other costs of $1 million. The company’ special
technologies group recognized $9 million of costs primarily related
to the closure of a facility in Springfield, Illinois and the restruc-
turing of Agris Corporation. These costs consisted of termination
benefits of $4 million for approximately 200 employees, property
and equipment write-downs of $1 million, inventory write-downs
of $1 million and other costs of §3 million.

2001
The reserves and liabilities for special items at October 31 in

millions of dollars and the number of employees to be terminated
were as follows:

Reserves
Accruals Liguidations and
and and Liabilities
Adjustments  Payments 2001
Property and
equipment
FESEIVES ....oooveecveerrer e evennen $ 38 $ 38
Inventory reserves 33 33
Termination
benefits......oooveee e 26 $ @ 24
Contract
terminations .......cooovvceevinnnn. 27 27
Warranties and
product returns 16 16
Goodwill write-off................ 5 )
Other COStS .. 10 @) 7
Total oo e 155 {10) 145
Early-retirement benefits*............... 189 189
Total ..o, $ 344 3 (10) $ 334
2001
Employees to
be terminated.............coevrivvrne 1,000

*In the fourth quarter of 2001, the company accrued voluntary early-retirement
benefits based on acceptances to be paid from pension assets as pension payments
are made.

The costs for special items in 2001 totaled $344 million
consisting of $255 million of cost of sales and $89 million of
selling, administrative and general expenses as discussed below.

In the fourth quarter of 2001, the company announced
plans to exit the hand-held consumer products business included in
the commercial and consumer equipment segment. Affected by this
decision were consumer products operations and employees pri-
marily in the southeastern United States and Mexico. The company
sold its hand-held consumer products operations in Chihuahua,
Mexico and other United States facilities related to this business.

As a result, a total cost of $132 million was recognized consisting of
$15 million for termination benefits for approximately 700 employees,
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contract terminations of $27 million, product warranties and
returns of $16 million, impairment write-downs of $33 million for
inventory and $35 million for property and equipment, and other
costs of $6 million. The hand-held consumer products operations
had revenues of $240 million and $235 nullion during 2001 and
2000, respectively. During the same periods, pretax operating losses
were $72 million and $70 million, excluding the restructuring
costs as discussed above.

In the fourth quarter of 2001, the company also announced
plans to reduce manufacturing and marketing costs in the
construction and forestry segment. These plans included employee
separations, the closing or sale of certain forestry equipment
operations in Bessemer, Alabama; Atlanta, Georgia; and Woodstock,
Ontario. As a result, a total cost of $23 million was recognized
consisting of §11 million for termination benefits for approximately
300 employees, a write-oft of goodwill of $5 million, impairment
write-downs of property and equipment of $3 million and other
costs of $4 million.

During the fourth quarter of 2001, the company also
offered voluntary early-retirement programs primarily to certain
United States employees whose age plus years of service equaled
80 or more by October 31, 2001. Based on acceptances received,
the company recorded an expense of $189 million pretax for the
cost of the special retirement benefits and related curtailment costs
consisting of $132 million in cost of sales and $57 mullion in
selling, administrative and general expenses. The voluntary early-
retirement liability is being paid from the pension assets over the
remaining lives of the retirees and dependents as pension payments
are made (see Note 3).

3, PENSION AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS

The company has several defined benefit pension plans covering
its United States employees and employees in certain foreign
countries. The company also has several defined benefit health
care and life insurance plans for retired employees in the
United States and Canada.

The worldwide components of net periodic pension cost
and the significant assumptions consisted of the following in
millions of dollars and in percents:

2002 2001 2000
Pensions
SEIVICE COSL ...voeveveeeect e e e $107 $ 113 $106
Interest cost........ocovniiennnn, 448 424 414
Expected return on assets 619)  (603) (543)
Amartization of actuarial (gain) 10SS.....c.co.cvvevveneee 2 9 1
Amortization of prior service cost ........ 34 36
Amortization of net transition asset ©) t3)
Special early-retirement benefits......... 135
Settlements/cuntailments .............oo.... 7
Net cost (INCOME).............ccccoovvvrrrererriier e $ 8 § 13
Weighted-average Assumptions
Discount rates for obligations ...........cccivvercecneres 7.2% 7.4%
Discount rates for eXpenses.......cc.cocoeeven 7.4% 7.4%
Assumed rates of compensation increases ... 4.8% 4.8%
Expected long-term rates of return.............. 9.7% 9.7%




The worldwide components of net periodic postretirement
benefits cost and the significant assumptions consisted of the
following in millions of dollars and in percents:

2002 200%1 2000
Health Care and Life Insurance
Service cost $ 8 $69 3570
Interest cost 224 192 189
Expected return on assets {44) (54) (43)
Amortization of actuarial 0SS ..........c.ovevrriirniin 46 1
Amortization of prior service Cost......ccccoovivriin 6) 2 3
Special early-retirement benefits..........o oo 1
Settlements/curtallments ... 53
NEECOSE......ccoooivviee e $303 $263 §214
Weighted-average Assumptions
Discount rates for obligations .........c...ocoenrivnninns 6.75% 7.25% 7.74%
Discount rates for eXpenses.... ..o 7.25% 7.74% 7.75%
Expected long-term rates of return....c....coinn. 97% 97% 97%

The total special early-retirement benefits were $3 mullion
in 2002 and $189 million in 2001, including curtailments
(see Note 2).

The annual rates of increase in the per capita cost of
covered health care benefits (the health care cost trend rates)
used to determine 2002, 2001 and 2000 costs were assumed to
be 5.0 percent for 2003 and all future years, 4.5 percent in 2002
and all future years and 4.5 percent for 2001 and all future years,
respectively. The annual rates of increase in the per capita cost for
the October 31, 2002 health care obligations were 9.0 percent for
2003, 7.0 percent for 2004 and 5.0 percent for all future years.

An increase of one percentage point in the assumed health care
cost trend rate would increase the accumulated postretirement
benefit obligations at October 31, 2002 by $438 million and the
aggregate of service and interest cost component of net periodic
postretirement benefits cost for that year by $§36 million. A decrease
of one percentage point would decrease the obligations by

$392 million and the cost by $32 million.

The expected long-term rate of return on plan assets reflects
management’s expectations of long-term average rates of earnings
on funds invested to provide for benefits included in the projected
benefit obligations. The return is based on the outlook for inflation,
fixed income returns and equity returns, while also considering the
plans’ historical returns, its asset allocation and investment strategy,
as well as the views of investment managers and other large
pension plan sponsors. Although not a guarantee of future results,
the average annual return of the company’s United States pension
fund was 10.2 percent in the past ten years and 11.5 percent in
the past 20 years. The expected long-term rate of return, which
will be used beginning in fiscal year 2003, will be 8.5 percent for
the United States plans. The discount rate assumption is based on
investrment yields available on AA rated long-term corporate bonds.
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A worldwide reconciliation of the funded status of the
benefit plans at October 31 in millions of dollars follows:

Heaith Care

and
Pensions Life insurance
2002 2001 2002 2001
Change in benefit obligations
Beginning of year balance............co..... $(6,440) $(5,873) $(3,114) $(2,612

) )

SErvICe COSt....vviviricern e (107 (113 83) (69)
INtErESt COSL.......ovevvvvenrees e @448)  (424) (2240 (192
Actuarnial 10SS .......covrrvs e (293) (274 (882)  (361)
Benefits paid 474 391 195 173
Settlements/curtailments 4 3 {53)
Special early-retirement benefits ......... 3 (139 (1)
Foreign exchange and other 27 (15) 1
End of year balance ... ccverrieennee (6,340) (6,440) (4,108) (3,114)
Change in plan assets (fair value)
Beginning of year balance...........cc.oou... 5951 7,646 451 552
Actual return on plan assets..........c... (481) (1,318 @n  {don
Employer contribution......c....ccooveivvennn. 33 21 195 173
Benefits paid.........o..oerrccenicnnrivnmenennae @74 @91 (195 (173)
Foreign exchange and other................. 8) M
End of year balance .......cc.cccervveicivennn, 5,024 5951 410 451
Plan obligation more than

Plan @SSELS e et e (1,816)  (489) (3,698) (2,663)
Unrecognized actuarial loss 1,975 593 1,518 598
Unrecognized prior service (credit) cost .. 90 118 1) )]
Remaining unrecognized

transition liability (asse?).......ccoocevns 1 (1)
Net amount recognized

in the balance shest ... $ 250 $ 221 $(2,181) $(2,073)

Amounts recognized in
balance sheet

Prepaid benefit COSt ..o ivivrnnnnn, $ 50 % 652
Accrued benefit liability {1,529)  473) $(2,181) $(2,073)
Intangible asset.........coo e 87 20
Accumulated pretax charge to
other comprehensive income............ 1,642 22

Net amount recognized.................... $ 250 § 221 $(2,181) ${2,073)

The projected benefit obligation, accumulated benefit
obligation and fair value of plan assets for pension plans with
the accumulated benefit obligations greater than plan assets at
October 31, 2002 were $6,722 million, $6,375 million and
$4,849 million, respectively, and at October 31, 2001 were
$407 million, $366 million and $29 million, respectively,



4, INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes by taxing jurisdiction and by
significant component consisted of the following in millions
of dollars:

2002 2001 2000
Current:
United States:
FRABTAN v oo e $145 ¢ 96 $264
SEAB. o e 1 8 26
FOTIGN..... v et 109 112 142
Total CUITent ..o 255 216 432
Deferred:
United States:
FEABTAl .....ovvvcorer e 6 171 (118
SEAE. v e st 2 an (14)
FOrBIAN. ... ©) (10) (6)
Total deferred ..., 3 (198 (138
Provision {or income taxeS.......ccovvvrrerveriiinn. $258 §$ 18 $294

Based upon location of the company’s operations, the
consolidated income (loss) before income taxes in the United States
in 2002, 2001 and 2000 was $327 million, $(227) million and
$504 million, respectively, and in foreign countries was $276 million,
$202 million and $274 million, respectively. Certain foreign
operations are branches of Deere & Company and are, therefore,
subject to United States as well as foreign income tax regulations.
The pretax income by location and the preceding analysis of the
income tax provision by taxing jurisdiction are, therefore, not
directly related.

A comparison of the statutory and effective income
tax provision and reasons for related differences in millions of
dollars follow:

Deferred income taxes arise because there are certain items
that are treated differently for financial accounting than for income
tax reporting purposes. An analysis of the deferred income tax
assets and liabilities at October 31 in millions of dollars follows:

2002 2001
Deferred  Deferred  Deferred  Deferred
Tax Tax Tax Tax
Assets  Liabilitles  Assets  Liabilities
Accrual for retirement and
postemployment benefits............. $ 721 $ 692
Minimum pension liability
AGUSIMENE......cctvecec 612 8
Accrual for sales allowances............ 273 285
Tax over book depraciation $ 221 $ 170
Deferred lease iNCOME........cc.covvevees 155 145
Deferred installment sales income.... 106
Allowance for doubtful receivables....... 75 63
Accrual for vacation pay.........c........ 54 51
Tax loss and tax credit camy forwards... 47 47
Unrealized loss on derivatives .......... 25 39
Other iBMS ... v 89 49 161 55
Less valuation allowance ................ )
Deferred income tax
assels and liabilities ............. $1801 $ 425 $1,346 $ 476

Deere & Company files a consolidated federal income tax
return in the United States, which includes the wholly-owned
Financial Services subsidiaries. These subsidiaries account for
income taxes generally as if they filed separate income tax returns.

At October 31, 2002, certain tax loss and tax credit
carryforwards for $47 million were available with $2 million
expiring from 2006 through 2008 and $45 million with an
unlimited expiration date.

2002 2001 2000 5. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
United States federal income tax provision The major components of other income and other operating
(credit) at a statutory rate of 35 percent..... $211 $ © $272 expenses consisted of the following in millions of dollars:
Increase (decrease) resulting from: 2002 2001 2000
State and local income taxes, net of Other income
federal income ta.x‘bleneﬂt ““““““““““““““““““““ 2 ) 8 Gains from sales of retail notes and leases™..  $ 81 $ 32 $ 24
Taxes on foreign activities : - (M 28 13 secyritization and servicing fee income....... 50 30 31
Benefit of Forelgn Sales Corporation...........cccccvecen, {®) ®) Revenues from services 51 50 40
Goodwill amOrtization ..............coooccvennvccnnernnnnnine, 10 11 9 v — 12 12 18
Nondeductible costs and other-net ..., ® Other™* ... 75 59 60
Provisian for iNCOME (X8 ............covve $258 § 18 §$294 TOW e $269 $185 §173
Other operating expenses
At October 31, 2002, accumulated earnings in certain Depreciation of equipment on
overseas subsidiaries totaled $574 million for which no provision operating [6ases ..o §316  $317 $280
for United States income taxes or foreign withholding taxes has Cost of services -3 40 36
been made, because it is expected that such earnings will be O™ s 63 36 3
reinvested overseas indefinitely. Determination of the amount of TOtl oo, $410 $393 $319

unrecognized deferred tax liability on these unremitted earnings
is not practical.
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* Includes securitizations and other sales of retail notes and leases.
** Includes fire insurance settlements in 2002.
***Includes Argentine peso devaluation losses in 2002.




6. UNCONSOLIDATED AFFILIATED COMPANIES

Unconsolidated affiliated companies are companies in which
Deere & Company generally owns 20 percent to 50 percent
of the outstanding voting shares. Deere & Company does not
control these companies and accounts for its investments in them
on the equity basis. The investment in these companies primarily
consist of Deere-Hitachi Construction Machinery Corporation
{50 percent ownership), Nortrax Inc. (40-41 percent ownership),
Bell Equipment Limited (32 percent ownership) and Sunstate
Equipment Co., LLC (46 percent ownership). These companies
manufacture, market or rent equipment. Deere & Company’s
share of the income of these companies is reported in the
consolidated income statement under “Equity in Income (Loss)
of Unconsolidated Affiliates.” The investment in these companies
is reported in the consolidated balance sheet under “Investments
in Unconsolidated Affiliates.”

Summarized financial information of the unconselidated
affiliated companies in millions of dollars is as follows:

Year Ended October
Operations 2002 2001 2000
SABS v e, $1605 $1667 $1,233
Net inCome (I0SS) ..cvvvvvvvvnnriieir s (38) 32) 19
Deere & Company's equity in
NEt INCOME (10SS) «v.vvvevvrccrrenii e (25) (22) 2
October 31
Financial Position 2002 2001
TOMAI @SSEIS ..ot v e, $1,265 $1,369
Total external DOrrOWINGS . ..c..vvvrcveriiireeeceecreeonns 193 221
Total NEt ASSALS ... e 449 461
Deere & Company's share of
the NEL aSSEIS......oeev e s 181 198

7. MARKETABLE SECURITIES

Marketable securities are currently held by the health care
subsidiaries. All marketable securities are classified as available-for-
sale under FASB Statement No. 115, with unrealized gains and
losses shown as a component of stockholders’ equity. Realized gains
or losses from the sales of marketable securities are based on the
specific identification method.

The amortized cost and fair value of marketable securities

in millions of dollars follow:

Amortized  Gross Gross
Cost  Unrealized Unrealized Fair
or Cost Gains Losses Value
Qctober 31, 2002
EQUItY SECUNTEIES. .oev.vvrrcevrvrvrvienn, $ 18 $ 2 $ 16
U.S. govemment and agencies........ 49 § 3 52
COrporate ..o 63 3 66
Mortgage-backed securities.......... 53 2 55
Marketable securities............. $183 §$ 8 $ 2 $189
October 31, 2001
Equity securties.....c...ovvovvorvconennnne $12 §$ 1 $ 1 $ 12
U.S. government and agencies........ 26 1 27
COrporate ......oocoovvei e 81 4 85
Mortgage-backed securities.......... 50 2 52
Marketable securities............. $168 $ 8 $ 1 3176

|
|
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The contractual maturities of debt securities at October 31,
2002 in millions of dollars follow:

Amortized Fair

Cost Value

DUB iN ONE YBAT OF IBSS.......ovviirs i oo $ 17 $ 17
Due after one through five years.... 70 74
Due after five through 10 Years..........ooveriveriinniccomnionnns 44 46
DUE afBr 10 YEAS. .v...v ittt 34 36
Debt SeCUHBS........ccoovccrivcre e s $165 $173

Actual maturities may differ from contractual maturities
because some securities may be called or prepaid. Proceeds from
the sales of available-for-sale securities were $34 million in 2002,
$7 million in 2001 and $205 million in 2000. In 2002 and 2001,
realized gains and losses were not significant. In 2000, realized
gains were $20 million and realized losses were $13 million.
Proceeds in 2000 include the sale of securities that were previously
transferred to Deere & Company from John Deere Insurance
Group, Inc. prior to the sale of this subsidiary in 1999.The increase
(decrease) in the net unrealized gain after income taxes was
$1 million, $4 million and $(5) million during 2002, 2001
and 2000, respectively.

8, TRADE ACCOUNTS AND NOTES RECEIVABLE

Trade accounts and notes receivable at October 31 consisted of

the following in millions of dollars:

2001

Trade accounts and notes;
AGFICUIRUTAL ..ot e s
Commercial and consumer

* Restated due to transfer of production of skid-steer loaders from commercial and
consumer to construction and forestry (see Note 27).

In 2002 and 2001, the Equipment Operations sold trade
receivables to the credit operations (see Note 1).

At October 31, 2002 and 2001, dealer notes included in
the previous table were $472 million and $583 million, and the
allowance for doubtful trade receivables was $45 million and
$51 million, respectively.

Trade accounts and notes receivable arise from sales
of goods to dealers. Under the terms of the sales to dealers,
interest is charged to dealers on outstanding balances, from the
earlier of the date when goods are sold to retail customers by
the dealer or the expiration of certain interest-free periods
granted at the time of the sale to the dealer, until payment is
received by the company. Dealers cannot cancel purchases after
goods are shipped and are responsible for payment even if the
equipment is not sold to retail customers. The interest-free
periods are determined based on the type of equipment sold
and the time of year of the sale. These periods range from one to
12 months for agricultural tractors, from one to eight months for
most construction and forestry equipment, and from one to 24
months for most other equipment. Interest-free periods may not
be extended. Interest charged may not be forgiven and interest



rates, which exceed the prime rate, are set based on market factors.
The company evaluates and assesses dealers on an ongoing basis as
to their credit worthiness and generally retains a security interest
in the goods associated with these trade receivables. The company
is obligated to repurchase goods sold to a dealer upon cancellation
or termination of the dealer’s contract for such causes as change
in ownership, closeout of the business or default. The company
may also in certain circumstances repurchase goods sold to a deal-
er in order to satisfy a request for goods from another dealer.
Trade accounts and notes receivable have significant
concentrations of credit risk in the agricultural, commercial
and consumer, and construction and forestry sectors as shown
in the previous table. On a geographic basis, there 15 not a
disproportionate concentration of credit risk in any area.

9, FINANCING RECEIVABLES

Financing receivables at October 31 consisted of the following in
millions of dollars:

2002 2001
Retail notes:
Equipment; ’
AGHCURLIAL .. ovs oo s enns s $4292 $4,711
Commercial and consumer-...... g14 786
Construction and forestry.... 1,550 1,686
Recreational ProduCtS ......coovveceieerrinericnncrn e 166 245
TOMAL oo et et 6,922 7,428
Wholesale notes.........cccc.ce.... 950 927
Revolving charge accounts 928 845
FINanCing lBASES ....vovvvvviiervecriirirnr e esissresiecsans 751 774
OpErating 10anS ... .cvviverccrei e 563 502
Total financing receivables ..........ccoiveeriverriveniensons 10,114 10,476
Less:
Unearned finance income:
EQUIDMENE NOTES ... e 754 950
Recreational product NOES .....c..cevrivverivericennns 5 81
FINANCING 1BASES..cvvvevverierieree s e 105 120
Total .....oovveoe, PR UORR 910 1,151
Allowance for doubtful receivables .........cocenennn,s 136 126
Financing receivables —net................ccoeovon.. $9,068 $9,199

Financing receivables have significant concentrations of credit
risk in the agricultural, commercial and consumer, construction
and forestry and recreational product business sectors as shown in
the previous table. In 2001, the credit operations discontinued the
financing of new recreational product retail notes. On a geographic
basis, there is not a disproportionate concentration of credit risk in
any area. The company retains as collateral a security interest in
the equipment associated with retail notes, wholesale notes and
financing leases.
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Financing receivable installments, including unearned
finance income, at October 31 are scheduled as follows in

millions of dollars:

2002 2001

Due in months:
0 = 12 e $ 4949 ¢ 4474
13 = 24 s 1,994 2,531
25 = BBt 1,430 1,615
927 1,053
541 567
273 236
TOtal i, $10114  $10,476

The maximum terms for retail notes are generally eight
years for agricultural equipment, six years for commercial and
consumer equipment, five years for construction and forestry
equipment, and 15 years for recreational products. The maximum
term for financing leases is generally five years, while the maximum
term for wholesale notes is generally 12 months.

At October 31, 2002 and 2001, the unpaid balances of
retail notes and leases previously sold by the credit operations
were $2,621 million and $1,647 million, respectively. The retail
notes sold are collateralized by security interests in the related
equipment sold to customers. At October 31, 2002 and 2001,
worldwide financing receivables administered, which include
financing receivables and leases previously sold but still adminis-
tered, totaled $11,689 million and $10,846 million, respectively.

Total financing receivable amounts 60 days or more past due
were $57 million at October 31, 2002, compared with $61 million
at October 31,2001, These past-due amounts represented
.62 percent of the receivables financed at October 31, 2002 and
.66 percent at October 31, 2001. The allowance for doubtful
financing receivables represented 1.48 percent and 1.35 percent
of financing receivables outstanding at October 31, 2002 and
2001, respectively. In addition, at October 31, 2002 and 2001, the
company’s credit operations had $153 million and $148 million,
respectively, of deposits withheld from dealers and merchants
available for potential credit losses. An analysis of the allowance
for doubtful financing receivables follows in millions of dollars:

2002 2001 2000
Balance, beginning of the Year ........cccccovcvenriierienns $126 $106 $93
Provision charged to operations... 156 103 64
Amounts written Off.......c.covvce e (128)  (73) (44)
Transfers primarily related to retail note sales ........... (18) 10) @
Baiance, end of the vear ...............c.c.ccoovvvene $136 $126 $106

10. SALE AND SECURITIZATION OF FINANCING RECEIVABLES

The company periodically sells receivables to special purpose
entities (SPEs) in securitizations of retail notes. It retains interest~
only strips, servicing rights, and in some cases cash reserve accounts,
all of which are retained interests in the securitized receivables.
Gains or losses on sales of the receivables depend in part on the
previous carrying amount of the financial assets involved in the
transfer, allocated between the assets sold and the retained
interests based on their relative fair values at the date of transfer.




The company generally estimates fair values based on the

present value of future expected cash flows using management’s
key assumptions as discussed below. The company receives annual
servicing fees approximating 1 percent of the outstanding balance,
and rights to future cash flows. The company’s maximum
exposure under recourse provisions related to securitizations at
October 31, 2002 and 2001 was $209 million and $176 million,
respectively. Except for this exposure, the investors and securitization
trusts have no recourse to the company for failure of debtors

to pay when due. The company’ retained interests, which are
included in the recourse provisions, are subordinate to investors’
interests, and their values are subject to certain key assumptions as
shown below. The total assets and liabilities of the unconsolidated
SPEs related to securitizations at October 31, 2002 were

$2,720 million and $2,638 million, respectively.

The company recognized pretax gains on retail notes
securitized during 2002 and 2001 of $71 million and $12 million,
respectively. Key assumptions used to initially determine the fair
value of the retained interests in 2002 and 2001 included weighted-
average maturities of 19 months and 20 months, average annual
prepayment rates of 22 percent and 20 percent, expected annual
credit losses of .42 percent and .30 percent, and discount rates
on retained interests and subordinate tranches of 13 percent and
13 percent, respectively.

Cash flows received from securitization trusts in millions
of dollars were as follows:

2002 2001
Proceeds from new Securitizations ..., $2,870 $ 995
Servicing fees reCeived ..o e e 28 19
Other cash flows received..........cc.coovviv e e, 103 53

The total retained interests, weighted-average life, weighted-
average current key economic assumptions and the sensitivity
analysis showing the hypothetical effects on the retained interests
from immediate 10 percent and 20 percent adverse changes in
those assumptions with dollars in mullions were as follows:

2002 2001
Retail Note Securitizations
Carrying amount/fair value of retained interests $107 $ 92
Weighted-average life (in months) ......c.ccooecvvvevnine, 15 13
Prepayment speed assumption (@annual rate) ........... 19% 19%
Impact on fair value of 10% adverse change $ 8 $ 3
Impact on fair valug of 20% adverse change $19 $ 6
Expected credit losses (annual rate) ..........cevvvns .39% .39%
impact on fair vaiue of 10% adverse change $ 1.1 $ 6
Impact on fair value of 20% adverse change $ 22 §12
Residual cash flows discount rate (annual) .............. 13% 13%
Impact on fair value of 10% adverse change $ 25 $ 22
Impact on fair value of 20% adverse change ................ $ 49 $ 42

These sensitivities are hypothetical changes in fair value and
cannot be extrapolated because the relationship of the changes
in assumption to the changes in fair value may not be linear.
Also, the effect of a variation in a particular assumption is calculated
without changing any other assumption, whereas, changes in one
factor may result in changes in another. Accordingly, no assurance
can be given that actual results would be consistent with the
results of these estimates.
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Principal balances of owned, securitized and managed
retail notes; past due amounts; and credit losses (net of recoveries)

in millions of dollars follow:

Principal Principal 60 Days or Net Credit

Outstanding More Past Due Losses
2002
OWNgd v e $ 6,066 $ 18 $ 27
Securitized......c.coovvvueee 2,497 14 10
Managed............cc....... $ 8,563 $ 32 $ 37
2001
OWned ..o, $ 6,122 $ 23 $ 32
Securitized. ..o vevriennns 1,494 13 10
Managed......c..ccovrvivnnn, $ 7616 $ 36 $ 42

The amount of actual and projected future credit losses
as a percent of the original balance of retail notes securitized
{expected static pool losses) were as follows:
Retail Notes Securitized In

2002 2001

Actual and Projected Losses (%) as of Year End:
2002 e s B61% 57%
2007 oo e e B61%

11. OTHER RECEIVABLES

Other receivables at October 31 consisted of the following in
millions of dollars:

2002 2001

TaXES TBCOIVADIE 1v.vvvvvv i oo $ 232 $ 206
92 81

11 13

91 89

Other reCeIVADIBS .........ccco e e $ 426 389

The credit operations’ receivables related to securitizations
are equal to the present value of payments to be received for
certain retained interests and deposits made with other entities
for recourse provisions under the retail note sales agreements.

12. EQUIPMENT ON OPERATING LEASES

Operating leases arise primarily from the leasing of John Deere
equipment to retail customers. Initial lease terms generally range
from 36 to 60 months. Net equipment on operating leases totaled
$1,609 million and $1,939 million at October 31, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. The equipment is depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the terms of the leases. The accumulated depreciation on this
equipment was $614 million and $577 million at October 31, 2002
and 2001, respectively. The corresponding depreciation expense
was $316 million in 2002, $318 million in 2001 and $280 million
in 2000.

Future payments to be received on operating leases totaled
$645 million at October 31, 2002 and are scheduled as follows
in millions of dollars: 2003 — $293, 2004 — $189, 2005 - $102,
2006 — $46 and 2007 — $15.




13. INVENTORIES

Most inventories owned by Deere & Company and its

United States equipment subsidiaries are valued at cost, on the
“last-in, first-out” (LIFO) basis. Remaining inventories are
generally valued at the lower of cost, on the “first-in, first-out”
{FIFO) basis, or market. The value of gross inventories on the
LIFO basis represented 72 percent and 70 percent of worldwide
gross inventories at FIFO value on October 31,2002 and 2001,
respectively. If all inventories had been valued on a FIFO basis,
estimated inventories by major classification at October 31 in
millions of dollars would have been as follows:

2002 2001
Raw materials and SUPPUES.............cvovveviererves e $ 515 $ 516
WOMK-IN-PIOCESS ...ttt anen 361 376
Finished machings and pans.........cc.ceercervnivvnineiveerienninns 1,444 1,618
Total FIFO valug.................. 2,510
Adjustment to LIFO value .... 1,004
INVENTOTIES .....co.vovece e e $1372  $1,506

14. PROPERTY AND DEPRECIATION

A summary of property and equipment at October 31 in millions
of dollars follows:

2002 2001

LANG 1o e et $ 62 $ 59
Buildings and building equipment e 1,254 1,238
Machinery and equipment..........ccccevvverinnivinn i 2,470 2,458
Dies, patterns, 10018, BIC.....o..covvverconr v e, 821 765
All other 692 686
COoNStrUCTION iN PrOGrESS ovvvvevvereveceerrceenr e e 196 182

TOtAl L COSE..ovvvvr v e 5495 5388
Less accumulated depreciation ... 3,497 3,336
Property and equipment — net ..............coocevrienrienns $1,998 $2052

Leased property under capital leases amounting to
$12 million and $15 million at October 31, 2002 and 2001,
respectively, is included in property and equipment.

Property and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation. Property and equipment additions in 2002, 2001
and 2000 were $358 million, $500 million and $422 million and
depreciation was $310 million, $308 million and $292 million,
respectively. Property and equipment expenditures for new and
revised products, increased capacity and the replacement or major
renewal of significant items of property and equipment are
capitalized. Expenditures for maintenance, repairs and minor
renewals are generally charged to expense as incurred. Most of
the company’s property and equipment is depreciated using
the straight-line method for financial accounting purposes.
Depreciation for United States federal income tax purposes is
computed using accelerated depreciation methods.
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Capitalized software is stated at cost less accumulated
amortization. The amount of total capitalized software costs,
including purchased and internally developed software, classified
as “Other Assets” at October 31, 2002 and 2001 was $238 million
and $218 nullion, less accumulated amortization of $170 million
and $138 million, respectively. Amortization of these software costs
was $38 million, $31 million and $29 million in 2002, 2001 and
2000, respectively.

The cost of compliance with foreseeable environmental
requirements has been accrued and did not have a material effect
on the company’s financial position or results of operations.

15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Net intangible assets consisted of the following in millions of dollars:

2602 2001
Unamortized goodwill.........c..cocrivevvmeevvenrerneris s $ 804 $ 846
Intangible asset related to minimum pension liability.......... 87 20
OENEE et s 4 8
Intangible assets ... $ 895 $ 874

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated
amortization, Intangible assets, excluding the intangible pension
asset, are being amortized over 30 years or less on the straight-line
basis. Accumulated amortization was $233 million and $183 million
at October 31,2002 and 2001, respectively. The intangible pension
asset is remeasured and adjusted annually. The unamortized
goodwill is reviewed annually or as events and circumstances
change for potential impairment. Upon adoption of FASB
Statement No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, in the
first quarter of fiscal 2003, goodwill will no longer be amortized
and will be written down only for impairments (see Note 1).

16. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

Short-term borrowings at October 31 consisted of the following
in millions of dollars:

2002 2001
Equipment Operations
COMMENGIAI PAPET.....vvririis e cereseeensiars s $ 313 § 557
Notes payable t0 BankS .....cc.covvevvcvivs s e s 69 143
Long-term borrowings due within one year ...........cc........ 16 73
TOtAl e 398 773
Financial Services
COMMETCIAl PAPET ... vovevriivene it ceeriss oo ens 1,531 2,672
Notes payable to BankS .........occveieiiircniecenene 37 24
Long-term borrowings due within Ong year............ccove... 2,471 2,728
TOMAl .o e 4,039 5425
Short-term borrowings.............o..ccccrvinnnceennnns $4437 $6,198

The weighted-average interest rates on total short-term
borrowings, excluding current maturities of long-term borrowings,
at October 31,2002 and 2001 were 2.8 percent and 3.3 percent,
respectively. All of the Financial Services’ short-term borrowings
represent obligations of the credit subsidiaries.



Unsecured lines of credit available from United States
and foreign banks were $4,406 million at October 31, 2002.
Some of these credit lines are available to both Deere & Company
and John Deere Capital Corporation. At October 31, 2002,
$2,465 million of these worldwide lines of credit were unused.
For the purpose of computing the unused credit lines, commercial
paper and short-term bank borrowings, excluding the current
maturities of long-term borrowings, were considered to constitute
utilization.

Included in the above lines of credit is a long-term committed
credit agreement expiring in February 2006 for $2,150 million.
The agreement is mutually extendable and the annual facility fee
is not significant. The credit agreement has various requirements
of John Deere Capital Corporation, including the maintenance
of its consolidated ratio of earnings to fixed charges at not less than
1.05 to 1 for each fiscal quarter and the ratio of senior debt to
total stockholder’s equity plus subordinated debt at not more than
8 to 1 at the end of any fiscal quarter. The credit agreement also
contains a provision requiring Deere & Company to maintain
consolidated tangible net worth of $500 million according to
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America in effect at October 31, 1998. Under this provision,
$1,815 million of the company’s retained earnings balance was
free of restriction at October 31, 2002.

Deere & Company has an agreement with John Deere
Capital Corporation pursuant to which it has agreed to continue
to own at least 51 percent of the voting shares of capital stock of
the Capital Corporation and to maintain the Capital Corporation’s
consolidated tangible net worth at not less than $50 million.

This agreement also obligates Deere & Company to make income
maintenance payments to the Capital Corporation such that its
consolidated ratio of earnings before fixed charges to fixed charges
is not less than 1.05 to 1 for any fiscal quarter. Deere & Company’s
obligations to make payments to the Capital Corporation under the
agreement are independent of whether the Capital Corporation
is in default on its indebtedness, obligations or other liabilities.
Further, the company’s obligations under the agreement are not
measured by the amount of the Capital Corporation’s indebtedness,
obligations or other liabilities. Deere & Company’s obligations to
make payments under this agreement are expressly stated not to
be a guaranty of any specific indebtedness, obligation or liability
of the Capital Corporation and are enforceable only by or in the
name of the Capital Corporation.
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17. ACGOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses at October 31 consisted

of the following in millions of dollars:

2002 2001
Equipment Operations
Accounts payable:
Trade PayahleS ......coorveeceeer e $1,004 $ 955
Dividends payable ........ccvvevriviiineeiies e, 53 52
OB e 48 53
Accrued expenses:
Employee BENEfitS ..o 241
Dealer commissions 221
Special items (Note 2) 74
OB e e s 1,080
TOMED oo e s 2,801 2,676
Financial Services
Accounts payable:
Deposits withheld from dealers and merchants.............. 183 148
260 357
65 49
OB oo 177 221
TOMAD oo e e e 655 775
EMINGHONS ... v st 3147 3547
Accounts payable and accrued expenses ............. $3,142  $3,097

*Includes trade receivable valuation accounts of $314 million and $354 million at
October 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, reclassified as accrued expenses by the
Equipment Operations as a result of trade receivables sold to Financial Services
(see Note 1).




18. LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

Long-term borrowings at October 31 consisted of the following
in millions of dollars:

2002 2001
Equipment Operations™*
Notes and debentures:
Medium-term notes due 2005 - 2006;

Average interest rates of 3.6% — 2002

ANG 2007 .ovor e e 3 45 $ 45
6.55% notes due 2004 .........c..oooeeoercerinr i 250 250
5-7/8% U.S. dollar notes due 2006: ($250 principal)

$170 swapped to Euro and Swedish Krona and

average variable interest rates of 3.7% — 2002,

4.2% = 2001 oo s e, 260~ 256"
7.85% debentures due 2010 ..o 500 500
6.95% notes due 2014: ($700 principal)

Swapped 10 2.8% — 2002 ... 769
8.95% debentures due 2019 200 200
8-1/2% debentures due 2022 200 200
6.55% debentures due 2028 200 200
8.10% debentures due 2030 .......cc.oovvevviivenrinreennn e 250 250
7.125% notes due 2031 . 300 300
OtNEr NOES .ovvv s e 15 9

TOMAL.. v e s 2,989 2,210

Financial Services™
Notes and debentures:
Medium-term notes due 2004 — 2007:

(principal $2,616 - 2002, $2,778 - 2001)

Average interest rates

of 2.8% — 2002, 4.6% — 2001 ...c..cceevviivreririnennn, 2,628* 2,796*
Floating rate notes due 2003:

Interest rate 0f 2.7% — 2007 .....ccovovvv e 200
6:125% U.S. dollar notes due 2003: {$150 principal)

Swapped to Canadian dollars and variable

interest rate of 4.2% — 2007 ..o 157*
5.125% debentures due in 2006:

{$600 principal) Swapped to variable interest rates

of 2.5% — 2002, 3.0% — 20071 ....ooirenrieiririri e 625 601*
4.5% notes due 2007: ($500 principal)

Swapped $450 mitlion to variabie interest rate

0f 2.5% — 2002 .oovvoirreiee e e 481*

6% notes due 2009: ($300 principal) Swapped to

variable interest rates of 2.0% — 2002,

3.8% — 2007 ccriviceiee s 329" 316"
7% notes due 2012 $1,500 principal) Swapped to

variable interest rate of 2.8% — 2002,.........cc..cco....e. 1,662
OtREr NOES .v.vvv e 86 131

Total notes and dehentUres ... e 5,811 4,201

Subordinated debt;
8-5/8% subordinated debentures due 2019 ................. 150 150

TOMAl v vt et 5,961 4,351

Long-term borrowings .............cc.ccooceercovnevrnnenrinnn, $8,950  $6,561

*Includes fair value adjustments related to interest rate swaps.
** All interest rates are as of year end.

All of the Financial Services’ long-term borrowings
represent obligations of the credit subsidiaries.
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The approximate amounts of the Equipment Operations’
long-term borrowings maturing in each of the next five years in
millions of dollars are as follows: 2003 — §16, 2004 — $262, 2005 -
$27,2006 — $272 and 2007 — $1. The approximate amounts of the
credit subsidiaries’ long-term borrowings maturing in each of the
next five years in millions of dollars are as follows: 2003 — $2,471,
2004 — $1,744, 2005 — $444, 2006 — $858 and 2007 — $754.

19. LEASES

At October 31,2002, future minimum lease payments under capital
leases totaled $11 million. Total rental expense for operating leases
was $95 million in 2002, $90 million in 2001 and $73 million

in 2000. At October 31, 2002, future minimum lease payments
under operating leases amounted to $345 million as follows:

2003 - $84, 2004 — $57, 2005 — $45, 2006 — $32, 2007 — $48 and
later years $79. See Note 20 for operating leases with residual
value guarantees.

20, COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At October 31, 2002, the company’s maximum exposure

under all financing receivable and lease recourse provisions was
$211 million. At Qctober 31, 2002, the company had commitments
of approximately $88 million for construction and acquisition
of property and equipment. The company had indemnification
agreements totaling $34 million related to various performance
bonds, pledged assets of $25 million, primarily outside the
United States, as collateral for borrowings, and $15 million of
restricted investments related to conducting the health care
business in various states at October 31, 2002. The company also
had other miscellaneous contingent liabilities totaling less than
$25 million at October 31, 2002.

At October 31, 2002, the company had guaranteed
approximately $80 million of residual values for five operating
leases related to certain buildings. The company is obligated at
the end of each lease term to pay to the lessor any reduction
in market value of the leased property up to the guaranteed
residual value. The company recognizes the expense for these
future estimated lease payments over the lives of the operating
leases. The leases have terms expiring from 2004 to 2007 and
are with various major financial institutions.

The company has certain minority ownership interests in
unconsolidated affiliates in which the majority owners have put
options to require the company to purchase their interests.

These puts could be exercised over a two-year window which
begins December 2004 to March 2005 and total approximately
$170 mullion to $250 million, depending on whether they are
exercised on the first or last day of the period. If the company’s
rating on its senior unsecured debt falls below Baa3 from
Moody’ Investors Service or BBB- from Standard & Poor’,
these puts could be exercised immediately for approximately
$150 million. A discussion of the company’s debt ratings is included
in Management’s Discussion and Analysis under Capital R esources
and Liquidity. The company also has call options to acquire the
majority owners’ interests. These calls can be exercised over a
two-year window beginning December 2003 to March 2004 and
total approximately $165 million to $260 million, depending on
whether they are exercised on the first or last day of the period.




John Deere B.V,, located in the Netherlands, is a consolidated
indirect wholly-owned finance subsidiary of the company. The debt
securities of John Deere B.V, including those which are registered
with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission, are
fully and unconditionally guaranteed by the company.

The company is subject to various unresolved legal actions
which arise in the normal course of its business, the most prevalent
of which relate to product liability (including asbestos related
liability), retail credit, software licensing, patent and trademark
matters. Although 1t 1s not possible to predict with certainty the
outcome of these unresolved legal actions or the range of possible
loss, the company believes these unresolved legal actions will not
have a material effect on its financial statements.

21. CAPITAL STOCK

Changes in the common stock account in 2000, 2001 and 2002
in millions were as follows:

22. STOCK OPTION AND RESTRICTED STOCK AWARDS

The company issues stock options and restricted stock to key
employees under plans approved by stockholders. Restricted stock
is also issued to nonemployee directors under a plan approved by
stockholders. Options are generally awarded with the exercise price
equal to the market price and become exercisable in one to three
years after grant. Certain other options have been awarded with
the exercise prices greater than the market price and become
exercisable in one year or longer after grant, depending on the
achievement of company performance goals. Options generally
expire 10 years after the date of grant. According to these plans at
October 31,2002, the company is authorized to grant an additional
5.8 million shares related to stock options or restricted stock.

The company has retained the intrinsic value method of
accounting for its plans in accordance with APB Opinion No. 25,
and no compensation expense for stock options was recognized
under this method. For disclosure purposes under FASB

Number of Statement No. 123, Accounting for Stock Based Compensation,
Shares Issued _ Amount the Black-Scholes option pricing model was used to calculate the
2658 $1,850 “fair values” of stock options on the date the options were awarded.
2 10 Based on this model, the weighted-average fair values of stock
_ 4 options awarded during 2002, 2001 and 2000 with the exercise
266.0 1,864 price equal to the market price were $11.42, $12.06 and $12.06
22 81 per option, respectively.
_ 4 Pro forma net income and earnings per share, as if the fair value
268.2 1,949 method in FASB Statement No. 123 had been used to account for
__8 stock-based compensation, and the assumptions used were as follows:
268.2 $1,957
— 2002 2001 2000
The number of common shares the company is authorized Net income (loss) (in millions)
to issue is 600 million and the number of authorized preferred Asreported .......coovoiieei e, § 319 § (64 $ 486
shares, none of which has been issued, is 9 mullion. Pro forma $ ©6 $ 446
A reconciliation of basic and diluted net income per share Net/;rs'cfemerg’js) g:;iihare s 13 S @) § 207
S, } orted — DaSIC........coovevrv e, . . .
follows in millions, except per share amounts: oo foprma asio $ 119 5 (41 § 101
2002 2001 2000 As reported — diUted. v $ 133 § (27) $ 206
NetiNCOME (1088) ....ovvvvevvvrvererrecesses e $3192  $(640) $4855 Pro forma — diluted .............cccccooumiivriinnns $ 119 8 (41 § 189
Average shares outstanding 238.2 235.0 234.3 Black-Scholes assumptions™
Basic net income {loss) per share.......... $134 $ (27 $ 207 Risk-free interestrate ... 3.6% 5.4% 6.2%
Average shares outstanding ...................... 2382 2350 234.3 [S)tlgl:f :glzﬁ:g/ 3283’ 3322;" 35112;0
Effect of dilutive stock options ........cc......... 2.7 1.8 1.7 S o en an
) Expected option life inyears .........cc....... 37 4.1 4,5
Total potential shares outstanding ............ 240.9 236.8 236.0 * Weighted-averages
Diluted net income (joss) per share..... $ 133 § (27) §$ 206

Stock options to purchase 2.8 million shares, 3.0 million shares
and 2.9 million shares during 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively,
were outstanding, but not included in the preceding diluted per
share computation because the options’ exercise prices were
greater than the average market price of the company’s common
stock during the related periods.
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During the last three fiscal years, shares under option in
millions were as follows:

2002 2001 2000
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Shares  Price® Shares Price* Shares Price*
QOutstanding at
beginning of year..... 205 $4056 167 $39.77 119 $38.59
Granted —at market.... 4.3 4230 4.5 4188 55 41.29
Exercised.......covvenns (1.6) 3035 (6 2894 (6 2875
Expired or forfeited..... (3) 4182 (1) 4280 (1) 4250
Outstanding at
end of year.............. 229 4158 205 4056 167  39.77
Exercisable at
endof year.............. 12.9 39.28 148 38.28 101 36.14

* Weighted-averages




Options outstanding and exercisable in millions at
October 31, 2002 were as follows:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Remaining

Range of Contractual  Exercise Exercise
Exercise Prices Shares  Life (yrs)*  Price” Shares  Price*
$13.63 - $23.56 ..... .8 1.72 $21.27 8 2127
$28.39 - $34.19 ..... 4.3 4.97 3274 4.3 32.74
$35.00 - $41.47 ..... 5.3 7.08 4117 3.6 41.25
$42.07 - $47.36 ..... 9.6 8.04 42.28 2.8 42.47
$50.97 - $56.50 ..... 24 5.40 54.76 1.6 56.50
$82.19.. i, 5 5.08 82.19
Total....oooeercie 229 129

*Weighted-averages

In 2002, 2001, and 2000, the company granted 12,711,
44,001 and 53,956 shares of restricted stock with weighted-
average fair values of $48.43, $41.96 and $37.55 per share,
respectively. The total compensation expense for the restricted
stock plans, which is being amortized over the restricted periods,
was $2 million, none and $9 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively. The amortization in 2001 was offset by decreases in
estimates of restricted stock to be issued.

23. EMPLOYEE STOCK PURCHASE AND SAVINGS PLANS

The company maintains the following significant plans for eligible
United States employees:

John Deere Savings and Investment Plan, for salaried employees
John Deere Stock Purchase Plan, for salaried employees
John Deere Tax Deferred Savings Plan, for wage employees

Company contributions under these plans were $21 million

in 2002, $34 million in 2001 and $27 million in 2000.
24. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME [TEMS

Other comprehensive income items under FASB Statement

No. 130 are transactions recorded in stockholders’ equity during
the year, excluding net income and transactions with stockholders.
Following are the items included in other comprehensive income
(loss) and the related tax effects in millions of dollars:

Before  Tax After
Tax (Expense) Tax
Amount Credit Amount
2001
Minimum pension liability adjustment ........... $ (1 8 3 & @8
Cumulative translation adjustment ................ ®63) 63)
Unrealized holding gain and net gain on
INMVESIMENES c.vv e 6 @ 4
Unrealized loss on derivatives:
Hedging 10S5. ..o arensns (155) 55 (100)
Reclassification of realized
0SS 10 NELINCOME ..ecvvvve e 43 (15) 28
Net unrealized 1085........c..cooevvvviveericinennns (112) 40 {72)
Total other comprehensive 1088 ........cou.vvvrin $(80) $ 41 $(139
2002
Minimum pension fiability adjustment ........... $(1,620) $ 604 $(1,016)
Cumulative translation adjustment ............... 8 @8
Unrealized holding gain and net gain on
INVESIMENTS ...cocv e 2 (1) 1
Unrealized loss on derivatives:
Hedging 108S......ovveevivierccreen s 61) 21 {40)
Reclassification of realized
loss to net income 99 (34) 65
Net unrealized J0SS.......covreviverievecnivinenns 38 (13) 25
Total other comprehensive 10SS ............ccvvvvene. $1,588) $ 590 $ (998)

25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fair values of financial instruments which do not approximate
the carrying values in the financial statements at October 31 in
millions of dollars follow:

2002 2001
Carrying Fair  Carrying Fair
Value Value  Value Value

Financing receivables ...........ce.covvivenee $9,068 $9,111 $9199 $9,226

Long-term borrowings

Equipment Operations ..., eeeereenee $2,989 $3319 $2,210 $2,404
Financial SErvices ........covvevvieerivnene, 5961 6,081 4351 4,355
TOtale e e e $8950 $3,400 $6,561 $6,759

Before  Tax After
Tax (Expense) Tax
Amount Credit Amount
2000
Minimum pension fiability adjustment............. $ 6 $ B $ M
Cumulative translation adjustment ................ (108) 1) (115
Unrealized loss on investments:
HOIAING 10SS..c. e M (1)
Reclassification of realized gain
10 NELINCOME ..o e 4
Net unrealized 10SS........cocooovvviveveivevn e 3 6)
Total other comprehensive loss $ © $(09

{continued)
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Fair Value Estimates

Fair values of the long-term financing receivables with fixed rates
were based on the discounted values of their related cash flows

at current market interest rates. The fair values of the remaining
financing receivables approximated the carrying amounts.

Fair values of long-term borrowings with fixed rates were based
on the discounted values of their related cash flows at current market
interest rates. Certain long-term borrowings have been swapped
to current variable interest rates. The carrying values of these
long-term borrowings include adjustments related to fair value
hedges under FASB Statement No. 133, which was adopted in 2001.

Derivatives

It is the company’s policy that derivative transactions are executed
only to manage exposures arising in the normal course of business
and not for the purpose of creating speculative positions or trading.



The company’s credit operations manage the relationship of the types
and amounts of their funding sources to their receivable and lease
portfolio in an effort to diminish risk due to interest rate and foreign
currency fluctuations, while responding to favorable financing
opportunities. The company also has foreign currency exposures
at some of its foreign and domestic operations related to buying,
selling and financing in currencies other than the local currencies.

Interest Rate Swaps

The company enters inte interest rate swap agreements primarily
to more closely match the fixed or floating interest rates of the
credit operations’ borrowings to those of the assets being funded.

Certain interest rate swaps were designated as hedges of
future cash flows from commercial paper and variable interest rate
borrowings. The effective portion of the fair value gains or losses on
these cash flow hedges are recorded in other comprehensive income
and subsequently reclassified into interest expense as payments are
accrued and the swaps approach maturity. These amounts offset the
effects of interest rate changes on the related borrowings. The amount
of the loss recorded in other comprehensive income at October 31,
2002 that is expected to be reclassified to earnings in the next
12 months if interest rates remain unchanged is approximately
$26 million after-tax. These swaps mature in up to 55 months.

Certain interest rate swaps were designated as fair value
hedges of fixed-rate, long-term borrowings. The effective portion
of the fair value gains or losses on these swaps were offset by fair
value adjustments in the underlying borrowings.

Any ineffective portions of the gains or losses on all cash
flow and fair value interest rate swaps designated as hedges were
recognized immediately in interest expense and were not material.
The amounts of gains or losses reclassified from unrealized in
other comprehensive income to realized in earnings as a result
of the discontinuance of cash flow hedges were not material.
There were no components of cash flow or fair value hedges
that were excluded from the assessment of effectiveness.

The company has certain interest rate swap agreements that
are not designated as hedges under FASB Statement No. 133 and
the fair value gains or losses are recognized directly in earningg.
These instruments relate to swaps that are used to
facilitate securitization transactions and certain borrowings.

Foreign Exchange Forward Contracts, Swaps and Options
The company has entered into foreign exchange forward contracts,
swaps and purchased options in order to manage the currency
exposure of certain receivables, liabilities, borrowings and expected
inventory purchases. These derivatives were not designated as hedges
under FASB Statement No. 133. The fair value gains or losses
from these foreign currency derivatives are recognized directly in
earnings, generally offsetting the foreign exchange gains or losses
on the exposures being managed.

The company has designated cross currency interest rate swaps
as fair value hedges of certain long-term borrowings. The effective
portion of the fair value gains or losses on these swaps are offset
by fair value adjustments in the underlying borrowings and the
ineffectiveness was not material. The company has also designated
foreign exchange forward contracts and currency swaps as cash
tlow hedges of long-term borrowings. The effective portion of the
fair value gains or losses on these forward contracts and swaps is
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recorded in other comprehensive income and subsequently
reclassified into earnings as payments are accrued and these instru-
ments approach maturity. This will offset the exchange rate effects
on the borrowing being hedged and the ineffectiveness

was not material.

26, CASH FLOW INFORMATION

For purposes of the statement of consolidated cash flows, the
company considers investments with original maturities of three
months or less to be cash equivalents. Substantially all of the
company’s short-term borrowings, excluding the current maturites
of long-term borrowings, mature within three months or less.

In 2002 and 2001, the Equipment Operations cash flows
from operations had a positive cash flow included in their decrease
in receivables related to the sale of trade receivables to Financial
Services (see Notes 1 and 29). The Financial Services cash flows
from investing activities had an offsetting cash outflow included in
their cost of receivables acquired. These intercompany cash flows
have been eliminated in the consolidated cash flows.

Cash payments for interest and income taxes consisted of
the following in millions of dollars:

2002 2001 2000

Interest:
Equipment Operations.......c..ccoooccevieveincincneiiven
Financial Services
Intercompany eliminations .........ccocovevecnrivnnniieeens

Consslidated

$ 312* $220 $152
413 540 489
as7n 34 23

$538 $726 $618

Income taxes:
Equipment OPErationS ...........oevveeevverrionsiorerissonnoe $188 $119 $393
FINancial SErvICES ......ccvvr i s ieennone 131 61 77
Intercompany eliminationsS........c..ccovvvveriiceeiiinnnns (118) 48 (57
Consolidated ..o e $201 $132 $413

* Includes interest compensation to Financial Services for financing trade receivables.

27. SEGMENT AND GECGRAPHIC AREA DATA FOR THE YEARS
ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2002, 2001 AND 2000

The company’s operations are organized and reported in four
major business segments described as follows (Also see Part I,
Item 1, of the company’s Form 10-K):

The agricultural equipment segment manufactures and
distributes a full line of farm equipment and service parts -
including tractors; combine, cotton and sugarcane harvesters;
tillage, seeding and soil preparation machinery; sprayers; hay and
forage equipment; material handling equipment; and integrated
agricultural management systemns technology.

The commercial and consumer equipment segment
manufactures and distributes equipment and service parts for
commercial and residential uses — including small tractors for lawn,
garden, commercial and utility purposes; riding and walk-behind
mowers; golf course equipment; utility vehicles; landscape and
irrigation equipment; and other outdoor power products. As of
November 1, 2001, the design, manufacture and distribution of
skid-steer loaders were transferred from the commercial and
consumer equipment segment to the construction and forestry
segment and the information for both segments has been restated
for 2001 and 2000.




The construction and forestry segment manufactures
and distributes a broad range of machines and service parts
used in construction, earthmoving, material handling and timber
harvesting — including backhoe loaders; crawler dozers and loaders;
four-wheel-drive loaders; excavators; motor graders; articulated
dump trucks; landscape loaders; skid-steer loaders; and log skidders,
feller bunchers, loaders, forwarders, harvesters and related
attachments.

The products and services produced by the equipment
segments are marketed primarily through independent retail
dealer networks and major retail outlets.

The credit segment primarily finances sales and leases by
John Deere dealers of new and used agricultural, commercial and
consumer, and construction and forestry equipment. In addition,
it provides wholesale financing to dealers of the foregoing
equipment, provides operating loans and finances retail revolving
charge accounts.

Certain operations do not meet the materiality threshold
of FASB Statement No. 131 and have been grouped together as
“Other” segments. These include the special technologies group
and health care.

Corporate assets are primarily the Equipment Operations’
prepaid pension costs, deferred income tax assets, other receivables
and cash and cash equivalents as disclosed in the financial statements
in Note 29, net of certain intercompany eliminations.

Because of integrated manufacturing operations and common
administrative and marketing support, a substantial number of
allocations must be made to determine operating segment and
geographic area data. Intersegment sales and revenues represent
sales of components and finance charges which are generally
based on market prices. Overseas operations are defined to include
all activities of divisions, subsidiaries and affiliated companies
conducted outside the United States and Canada.

Information relating to operations by operating segment
in millions of dollars follows with related comments included
in Management’s Discussion and Analysis. In addition to the
following unaffiliated sales and revenues by segment, intersegment
sales and revenues in 2002, 2001, and 2000 were as follows:
agricultural equipment net sales of $54 million, $76 million and
$94 million and credit revenues of $167 million, $22 million and
$4 million, respectively.

OPERATING SEGMENTS 2002 2001 2000

Net sales and revenues
Unaffiliated customers:

Agricultural eguipment net sales ............. $ 6738 $6,269 $5934
Commercial and consumer equipment
net sales™ ...ovi e 2,712 2,527 2,774
Construction and forestry
NEt SAIBS™ ...vveirvcver s 2198 2226 2,395
Other Net SalBS .....oovevevivverceee e 54 55 66
Total net saleS....covvvvvevciceen, 11,703 11,077 11,169
Credit revenueS ......covvveveervrcveerecenre 1426 1439 1,323
Other reVENUES ......vvevver e 818 777 645
Total oo $13,947 $13,293 $13,137

** See following ** note.

{continued)

OPERATING SEGMENTS 2002 2001 2000
Operating profit (loss)*
Agricultural QUIPMBNE .......evvvevvrevveen v $ 439 $ 257 $ 400
Commercial and consumer equipment™......, 79 (165) 167
Construction and forestry™™.......co.covrreoneenns {75) 83) 183
Credit™ ..o e, 386 274 254
OtNBI™™ oo (12 (31) (39)
Total operating profit..........cccoorvrnnricccennns 817 252 965
INtErest INCOME ......oevvviviei e, 66 39 40
Investment iNCOME ......c.ovceveveieeris e, 8
INtErest BXDENSE......cvevieercvieercce e, (223) (268) (182)
Foreign exchange 108S......ccovvovvvivvvcrninnnnn, (17 (15) 8
Corporate expenses — Net.....ovccvrevineennens (66) (54) (43)
INCOME LAXES ©vevvvvivrercvcere v ercans (258) (18) (294)
TOMAL oo e (498) (316) 479
Net income (I0SS) .......c..ccccovrorcrririnerns $ 319 % (64 $ 486

*In 2002, operating profit (joss) of the agricultural equipment, commercial and
consumer equipment, construction and forestry, credit and other segments includes
expense for special items of $12 million, $24 million, $27 million, none and $9 million,
respectively, for a total of $72 million. In 2001, the expense for special items was
$97 million, $160 million, $83 million, $3 million and $1 million, respectively, for a
total of $344 million (see Note 2).

** Years 2001 and 2000 were restated for sales of $140 million and $192 million,
operating losses of $29 million and $8 million and identifiable assets of $63 million
and $160 million, respectively, for the transfer of the production of skid-steer
loaders from commercial and consumer equipment to construction and forestry.
Other insignificant restatements of segment information for this transfer were
also made.

*** Operating profit of the credit business segment includes the effect of interest
expense, which is the largest element of its operating costs, and foreign exchange
gains or losses. Operating profit of the “other” category includes health care
investment income.

interest income

Agricultural eqUIBMBNL .......covvvvreerrinreens $ 7% 2% 39
Commercial and consumer equipment.......... 5 16 9
Construction and forestry .........cevvovveerrvrienen. 7 14 10
Credit™ e e s 948 869 791
COTpOrate. ..o e 66 39 40
INEEICOMPANY™....cvvev v eren e, (187) (34) (23)

TOMAl oo $ 846 $ 930 $ 866

*Inctudes interest income from equipment operations for financing trade receivables
in 2002.

interest expense

Agricultural equUIPMEnt™ .....coo..cevererivevieiiieenns $ 9 8 1$ 1

Commercial and consumer equipment® ........ 46

Construction and forestry*......c.oovcverniivennns 18

Credit 443 530 515

Other 1 2

COTPOTAE. oo 223 268 182

INtErCOMPANY™....cvive e v (187) (34) (23)
TOtAl o § 637 § 766 $§ 677

*Includes interest compensation to credit for financing trade receivables in 2002.

{continued)



OPERATING SEGMENTS 2002 2001 2000 2002 2001 2000
Depreciation” and amortization Operating profit (loss)
expense Agricultural 8qUIDMENE ... .veccccccc oo $ 439 $ 257 $ 400
Agricultural equipment........ o $ 212§ 204 § 199 Commercial and consUMEr eqUIPMENt ....c...c...cc.... 79 (1685) 167
Commercial and consumer equipment......... 81 89 7 CONSITUGHON AN TOTESITY .o 75) 83 183
Con;tructlon and forestry ..o vevencees 82 76 64 OhEr EQUIDMENL. ..o (42) (55) (57)
T S SR s @1 3 6y 3w
TOl $ 758 7188 64 Average identifiable operating assets
*Includes depreciation for equipment on operating leases. guring the year*
Equity in income (loss) of Agricultural BQUIPMENT........c.c.cccovvvvvvensines e, $3,222 $4,505 $4,313
uncenselidated affiliates Commercial and consumer equipment.............c..... 1476 2386 2175
Agricuitural €QUIPMENE .......v...rvvcrercveee $ ®S%S 3% B Construction and forestry 1445 1,741 147
Construction and forestry . A (10) 6 Other equipment 86 111 110
CrBAIt oo @ 3 1 TOMAl vt s s $6,229 $8,743 $8,069
OIBT e e ) 2 _
*Includes inventory as presented on the balance sheet.
L0 [N $ 2598 2% 2
Average identifiable operating assets
Identifiable operating assets during the year”
at year end* Agricultural EGUIPMENt.......vvvvcreer s $3,789 $5020 $4,889
Agricultural EGUIDMENE ....ccoorrrcecerersecrers $ 2875 $20975 $ 4,082 Commercial and consumer equipment................... 1666 2634 2385
Commercial and consumer equipment*™....... 1,324 1542 2,056 Gonstruction and fOrSIrY .....vovvvvsvsn v 1606 1913 1655
ConStruction and fOrestry™.......cvvveervnee 1423 1426 1682 ONer QUIPMENT....ooovv v g 11 110
Credit ..o e e 13,671 14559 10675 TOWL .o s $7,147 $9,678 $9,039
4 :13?8 1 332 1 ggg *Includes inventory at standard cost.
$23768 $22,663 $20.469 Operating refurn on operating assets”
Agricultural eqUIPMENT........coiv e 116% 51% 82%
*Includes ‘inventory as presented on the balance sheet. Commercial and consumer equipment ...........coc..... 47% (63% 7.0%
** See previous ** note. Construction and forestry @n% @43% 11.1%
Capital additions TOMAL v e 5.6% (5% 7.7%
Agricultural eqUIDMENt ......eevecveeer e $ 230 $ 266 $ 214 * Based on inventory at standard cost.
Commerc.lal and consumer equipment........ 62 161 131 In addition, the company evaluates its equipment segments
Construction and forestry ....oovvivveervccveerer 59 58 57 . X . e . .

Credit 3 10 and Financial Services utilizing a financial metric referred to as
Other 19 10 Shareholder Value Added (SVA). Each of the equipment segments
Total 3 500 § 422 is assessed a pretax cost of assets, which is 12 percent of the seg-

ment’s average identifiable operating assets during the year with
Investment in unconsolidated inventory at standard cost. Financial Services is assessed a pretax
affiliates at year end cost of equity, which is approximately 19 percent of its average
Agricultural €QUIDMENE .......vevr v $ 208 29 $ 26 equity during the year excluding the allowance for doubtful
Commercial and consumer equipment.......... 6 3 2 receivables. The cost of assets or equity, as applicable, is deducted
145 156 153 from the operating profit or added to the operating loss of the
7 6 10 equipment segments or Financial Services to determine the
3 4 amount of SVA. For this purpose, the operating profit of Financial
181§ 198 § 191 Services is net income before income taxes and changes to the

The company also evaluates its equipment segments based

on Operating Return on Operating Assets (OROA). For purposes

of this calculation, operating assets consist of average identifiable
assets during the year with inventory at standard cost, which
approximates FIFO cost. A summary of average operating assets

and OROA for the equipment segments with dollars in millions

were as follows:
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allowance for doubtful receivables (see Note 29).

A reconciliation of the Financial Services’ (credit and health
care) SVA components with dollars in millions follows:

2002 2001 2000
Operating Profit coo....oovveeeeveinice v $416 $ 298 § 272
Change in allowance for doubtful receivables....... 16 27 13
SVA INCOME. . oov.cevvv vt eee e $ 432 § 325 $ 285
Average equity $2115 $1,505 $1,324
Average allowance for doubtful receivables 161 111 103
SVA average equity $2276 $1,616 $1,427
SVA return on average quity.........cooeeerierieriennns 190% 201% 20.0%




The Shareholder Value Added (Lost) for each of the equip-
ment segments and Financial Services in millions of dollars were
as follows:

28. SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

Quarterly information with respect to net sales and revenues and
earnings is shown in the following schedule. Such information is

2002 2001 2000 shown in millions of dollars except for per share amounts.

, , First Second Third  Fourth
Agrlculturz_il equlpment..m.m.‘,\: ......................... $ (16) $ (346) $(187) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Commercial and consumer equipment................. (121) 481) (119 2002
Construction and forestry 312  (16)

. Net sales and revenues .........co..o.... $2522 $3987 $3,960 $3,469
Other equIDMENt ..o e 69) (70) ,
Financial SEMviCes ... 1 16 Inoome (loss) before income taxes ... (53) 240 289 127
Net INCome (05S).. v (38) 142 147 68
Ol $ (462) $ (1 1 87} $ (376) Net income (|st) per share
‘ — . —BASIC v 1 . . 28
The company views and has historically disclosed its Net irlljs;r!r?e (loss) per share (18 o0 o2
operations as consisting of two geographic areas, the United States —divted (16) 59 61 8
and Capadg, and overseas, shown below in nﬁ]lions of do]lgrs. Dividends declared per share.... 29 20 29 29
Operating income for these areas has been disclosed in addition to Dividends paid per share ................ 22 22 22 22
the requirements under FASB Statement No. 131. No individual
foreign country’s net sales and revenues were material for disclosure 2001
purposes. The percentages shown in the captions for net sales and Net sales and revenues™................. $2,705 $3,803 $3618 $3161
revenues indicate the approximate proportion of each amount Income (loss) before income taxes ... 92 215 137 (469)
that relates to the United States only. The percentages are based NEtINCOME (108 rvvvvvvve %6 128 2 (320
upon a three-year average for 2002, 2001 and 2000. Net income (loss) per share
= DASIC e 24 55 30 (1.36)
Net sales and revenues L [111Ts OO 24 b4 30 (1 36)
Unaffiliated customers: Dividends declared per share........... 22 22 22 22
United States and Canada: Dividends paid per share .............. 22 22 22 22

Equipment operations net sales (92%).. $ 8,199 $ 8,124 $ 8,272

Financial Services revenues (89%)....... 1,950 1,937 1,731
TOtal. e 10,149 10,061 10,003
QOverseas:
Equipment operations net sales ............ 3,504 2954 2,897
Financial Services revenues .........v..... 127 100 79
3,631 3,054 2,976
167 178 158
$13,947 $13,293 $13,137
Operating profit (loss)
United States and Canada:
Equipment operations 170 § (164) $ 529
Financial Services....... 410 283 265
TOtA e 580 119 794
Overseas:
Equipment operations...........cccc.cceer e 231 118 164
Financial Services 8 15 7
TOtal ..o, 237 133 171
TOM oo e $ 817 § 252 $ 965
Property and equipment
United SEAtes ........ocoovvir e $1.285 ¢$ 1407 $ 1,322
Mexico.......ccovn. 217 189 197
Germany............... 192 1585 121
QOther countries 304 301 272
TOMAl e e $1998 ¢$ 2052 $ 1,912
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* In the fourth quarter of 2001, the company adopted EITF Issue No. 00-10,
Accounting for Shipping and Handling Fees and Costs. The increases in net sales
and cost of sales in 2001 from the adoption of the new standard were $25 million in
the first quarter, $33 million in the second quarter, $34 million in the third quarter,
$31 million in the fourth quarter and $123 million for the year (see Note 1).

Common stock per share sales prices from New York Stock
Exchange composite transactions quotations follow:

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
2002 Market price
HIGN v e $45.15  $49.98 $49.18 $49.25
LOW.cvo oot enes s $36.60 $41.10 $3750 $39.50
2001 Market price
HIgh oo $47.13 $4596 $4280 $45.00
LOW.ooieen et see e $34.63 $3445 $36.04 $33.50

At October 31, 2002, there were 31,238 holders of record
of the company’s $1 par value common stock.

Dividend and Other Events

A quarterly cash dividend of §.22 per share was declared at the
board of directors’ meeting held on December 4, 2002, payable
on February 1, 2003.

In December 2002, the company’s credit operations issued
$300 million of 3.1% medium-term notes due in 2005 and
entered into interest rate swaps related to $150 million of these
notes, which swapped the fixed rate to a variable rate of 1.7% as
of December 11, 2002.




29. SUPPLEMENTAL CONSOLIDATING DATA

INCOME STATEMENT
For the Years Ended Octeher 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000
(In millions of doliars)

EQUIPMENT OPERATIONS* FIMANCIAL SERVICES
2002 2001 2000 2002 2001 2000

Met Sales and Revenues
NEESAIES ...o.vvv et e e $ 11,7028 $ 11,0774 % 11,1686
Finance and interest iNCOME........ccov v e e 85.6 95.9 98.1 $ 14406 $ 13835 $ 11,2454
Health care premiums and fEBS ... vieiveirciciinienen e 654.2 603.6 43930
OEr INCOME ..ot et 146.0 129.4 109.2 167.3 914 94.8

TOAL cvvev e e e 11,934.4 11,302.7 11,376.9 2,262.1 2,078.5 1,833.2
Costs and Expenses
COSEOF SAIBS.....vov et 9,608.1 9,391.9 8,952.2
Research and development 8XPENSES ......ov.vvvvv v s 527.8 590.1 5421
Selling, administrative and general eXpenses ...........c.ooevrieeienns 1,153.5 1,295.3 1,149.4 510.2 4246 357.9
INEETESE BXDENSE ... .ot ivvs v ci ettt s en b e 2229 2689 1831 4431 530.8 516.5
Interest compensation to Financial SErvices.............coev v, 158.1 9
Health care claims and COSIS.....covieriiverinnie e e ' 5184 476.0 380.5
Other operating BXPENSES. ........evsiverrcervrs et ces s et e e, 81.4 81.3 443 370.3 346.2 306.6

TOMAL et e 11,7518 11,6284 10,871.1 1,842.0 17776 1,561.5
Income {Loss) of Consolidated Group before

INCOME TERES ... oov.occvv e s e 182.6 (325.7) 505.8 4201 3009 2717
Provision (credit) for inCOME taXeS ...vvv e v 104.2 87.9 194.7 1541 105.6 991
Income (Loss) of Consolidated Group ..o, 784 (237.8) 3111 266.0 195.3 1726
Equity in Income (Loss) of Unconsclidated

Subsidiaries and Affiliates

CrBAIL ...ttt e 243.0 176.8 161.5 (3.8 (3.3) 6

DT vttt et e 2.2) 3.0) 12.9 A

TOMAL oo s 2408 173.8 174.4 3.8 3.2 B

Net InComE (L0SS).......o.co oo e $ 3182 % 6400 $ 4855 $§ 2622 ¢ 1921 § 1732

* Deere & Company with Financial Services on the equity basis.

The supplemental consolidating data is presented for informational purposes. The “Equipment Operations” (Deere & Company with Financial Services

on the Equity Basis) reflect the basis of consolidation described in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements. The consolidated group data in the
“Equipment Operations” income statement reflect the results of the agricultural equipment, commercial and consumer equipment, construction and forestry
and special technologies group operations. The supplemental “Financial Services” data represent Deere & Company’s credit and health care operations.
Transactions between the “Equipment Operations” and “Financial Services" have been eliminated to arrive at the consolidated financial statements.
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29. SUPPLEMENTAL CONSOLIDATING DATA (continued)

BALANCE SHEET
As of October 31, 2002 and 2001
{In millions of doliars except per share amounts)

EQUIPMENT OPERATIONS* FINANCIAL SERVICES

ASSETS 2002 2001 2002 2001
Cash and Cash EQUIVAIBNES ...........c....cc..overiie e e ees e e $ 26385 $ 4554 $ 1763 $ 5747
Cash equivalents depasited with unconsolidated Subsidiaries.........cc.coeovvreeerievriin s 790.8 1,643.2

Cash and Cash BQUIVAIBNTS ... 3,429.3 2,098.6 176.3 5747
MarketabIE SECUMTIES ..v...vvvvvevs s et ce et s 189.2 176.2
Receivables from unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiiates .........ccocvvovveriiieiieiennens 220.1 2718 259.8 333.0
Trade accounts and notes receivable - NBL.....coo v 909.4 1,050.7 21377 2,225.6
Financing receivables - MEL ..o e s 60.1 49,7 8,007.4 9,149.2
OINET TBCAIVADIES .....coo. et e st s 2791 260.8 147.3 1281
Equipment on 0perating 18aSES - NBL........ooeer et 124 106 1,596.8 1,928.6
IVENLOMIES .. ovvo v, 1,371.8 1,505.7
Property and equipment - net 1,963.4 2,012.8 34.9 39.5
Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates ...........ccoocovvvinvviniiinnrnniens 2,248.5 2,383.8 7.7 6.6
INtaNGIBIE ASSEES - NEL...coie i e e e e 894.3 873.1 8 8
Prepaid pension costs 496 652.0
Other assets 208.1 151.4 3740 269.4
DEfRITEd INCOME TAXES «....vcevv e et eei st en st st e bbb 1,576.3 0443 1.8 3
DETRITEA CNATGES ....vvevicviecsies et ssb s 734 90.6 206 13.9
TORAE ASSBIS .......ovii it s $ 13,2958 $ 12,355.9 $ 13,954.1 $ 14,8459
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
LIABILITIES
ShOM-EEIM DOMOWINGS .....evv ekt et et st es e $ 3981 $ 7734 $ 40382 $ 54251
Payables to unconsolidated subsidiaries and affliates.........co.covivverieriiieieiecieien 79.4 52.2 989.7 1,895.8
Accounts payable and accrued expenses ...........co..c.... SO RRRTRUUR 2,800.7 2,676.4 654.9 7745
Health care Claims a0 TBSEIVES.........ccvvvive et et 92.8 100.3
ACCTUBH TAXES 11 cvv v s v bbb st st 0e 83.2 36.5 4.2 7.6
DEferred INCOME TBXES .. .vcvvveve et et st st sb bttt 95 45 1029 69.9
LONG-1BIM DOIMOWINGS ... ovverrevir e st st s 2,988.8 2,210.2 59615 4,350.5
Retirement benefit accruals and other HaDitES .......ccovveiei e 3,7729 2,610.5 33.3 30.2

TOtA) HADMHES ...vvvvv vt e s et bi s s o re s 10,132.6 8,363.7 11,878.5 12,653.9
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common stock, $1 par value (authorized — 600,000,000 shares;

issued — 268,215,602 shares in 2002 and 2001),

AL STATBA VAIUB ... oo oo et e 1,957.0 1,948.6 968.6 968.6
Common stock in treasury, 29,321,098 shares in 2002

and 30,883,879 shares in 2001, a1 COSt.....c.oceviinriiirininiccne e (1,322.2) (1,405.5)
Unamortized restricted Stock COMPENSALION ..........ccovieerriinrieniereceervn s e (17.8) (16.8)
REtAINEA BAIMINGS .....cvv vttt ettt s s 39126 38348 1,195.9 1,333.2

TOAL et e e e e e s erae e 45296 4,361.1 21645 2,301.8
Minimum pension liability aQJUSIMENt........ccei v e e (1,032.1) (16.2)
Cumulative translation adjuStMENt............cccveeiniimcnn e e {293.1) (285.5) (49.7) {46.8)
Unrealized 10SS 0N BMVALIVES ....cor i e s 47.0) (72.0) @5.0) 67.8)
Unrealized gain on marketable SECUMHES. ........oovcoerivrireerririionsrnne e s 58 48 58 48

Accumulated other comprehensive inCoOmMe (10SS) ..ev.vivenniveirveineinievere e eesees (1,366.4) (368.9) (88.9 (109.8)

Total SIOCKNOIAEIS” BUILY...v.rveverersiersireiie e etsni s s 3,163.2 3,892.2 20756 2,192.0
Total liabilities and stockholders’ @QUIRY ..o e $ 13,2958 $ 12,3559 $ 13,9541 $ 14,8459

* Deere & Company with Financial Services on the equity basis.

The supplemental consolidating data is presented for informational purposes. The “Equipment Operations” (Deere & Company with Financial Services on the
Equity Basis) reflect the basis of consolidation described in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements. The supplemental “Financial Services” data represent
Deere & Company'’s credit and health care operations. Transactions between the “Equipment Operations” and “Financial Services” have been eliminated to

arrive at the consolidated financial statements.

39




29. SUPPLEMENTAL CONSOLIDATING DATA (continued)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended Qctober 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000
(in millions of dollars)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
NETINCOME (I0SS) ..evvvverrirerei et e
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Provision for doubtful receivables ......cvvovvereivirnn e
Provision for depreciation and amortization
Undistributed earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries
and affliates .........ocvvveiiie e e
Provision (credit) for deferred income taxes ...
Changes in assets and liabilities:
RECEIVADIES ... vvovr s
INMVEMTOTIES ... cvvcvens et e e s

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Collections of reCeivablES . ......c..coevvies e
Proceeds from sales of financing receivables
Proceeds from maturities and sales of marketable securities...........
Proceeds from sales of equipment on operating 16ases ................
Proceeds from $ale 0f & DUSINESS ......vveviivrive e
Cost of receivables aCquIred...........ccv e,
Purchases of marketable securities
Purchases of property and equUIPMENt ......coviicinerienmiarineion.
Cost of operating 18aSes ACQUINEd.........vvvverriiicinrceniceerirarniines
Increase in investment in Financial Services.........ooovivirvnn,
Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquired
Decrease (increase) in receivables from unconsolidated affiliates ...,

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Increase (decrease) in short-term HOMOWINGS ...covvvvvvvveeierivenniree
Change in intercompany receivables/payables ........cccoeveerviiiens
Proceeds from long-term bormowings........c.ovimiceeienierie e
Principal payments on long-term borrowings
Proceeds from issuance of common StocK.........cccocovvivceicieniionnns
Repurchases of COMMON SIOCK. .. ......cvrivrimonierionneinieenrns
Capital investment from Equipment Operations
Dividends paid

Met Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents......
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year...............

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

EQUIPMENT GPERATIONS*
2602 2001 2000
319.2 640 $ 4855

6.5 10.4 112
394.8 3895 359.0
156.2 (1651)  (147.0
(19.2) (2294)  (152.3)
116.7 2,198.0 (70.6)
85.8 136.5 (184.0)
107.9 225.0 460.8
219.9 200.4 (295.1)
1,387.8 2,701.3 4675

87 69.5 136

30.6
202.8

16 2.1 14
535
©7.4) (2.6) (20.1)
(354.5) 4856  (414.1)

1) ©1) @47

(700.0)

©.3) 308.0)  (641.8)
80.3 66.7 6.1)
(2532  (1,367.0)  (837.4)
(304.6) (225.2) 459.7
296 62.8 26.7)
708.3 558.8 752.1
759 733  (208.7)
480 17.8 15.9

(1.2 (1.3 (6)
(208.9) (2065)  (206.0)

(1.5 (2.9) (1.3)
193.8 130.2 784.4

23 (5.6) (3.9
1,330.7 1,458.9 410.6
2,098.6 639.7 229.1

$ 34293 $ 20986 §$ 6397

FINANCIAL SERVICES
2002 2001 2000
$ 2622 $ 1921 $ 1732
154.2 102.6 63.8
366.3 359.7 3185
38 3.2 (6)
18.0 (9) 1.
(3.8 03) 16.8
4.2) 169.5 79.2
263 (1042 (31.1)
770.2 7127 639.3
149923 70682 66415
29678 17280 978.3
75.4 324 450
4936 389.6 3332
(17.861.4) (121969)  (9,137.0)
87.8) (75.7) 61.9
@.2) (5.4) (126)
(481.8) (766.2)  (935.2)
@7 {72 (1.5
54.1 (173.9 (135.2)
(79.5) 57 @.5)
588  (40014) (2289.9)
(11086) (2813  1,326.1
(882.0)  1,037.0 4576
38654 42595 20618
695.1) (20452  (2,168.7)
700.0
(399.5) (10.7) (26.8)
8.7 17.1
(12198 36680  1,667.1
(7.6) (4.9
(398.4) 3744 165
574.7 2003 183.8
$ 1763 $ 5747 $ 2003

* Deere & Company with Financial Services on the equity basis.

The supplemental consolidating data is presented for informational purposes. The “Equipment Operations” (Deere & Company with Financial Services on the
Equity Basig) reflect the basis of consolidation described in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements. The supplemental “Financial Services” data represent
Deere & Company’s credit and health care operations. Transactions between the “Equipment Operations” and “Financial Services” have been eliminated to

arrive at the consolidated financial statements.
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DEerre & COMPANY
SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

(Dollars in millions except per share amounts)

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994 1993

Net sales and rBVENUEBS......cr.overr e v $13947 $13293 $13137 $11,751  $13822 $12,791  $11,228 $10291 $ 8977 $ 7,696
NELSAES ..vcvv e e e . 1703 11077 11169 9,701 11926 11,082 9,640 8,830 7,663 6,479
Finance and interest inCome ... 1,339 1,445 1,321 1,104 1,007 867 763 660 548 563
Research and development expenses. ................. 528 590 542 458 445 412 370 327 276 270
Selling, administrative and general expenses........ 1,657 1,717 1,505 1,362 1,309 1,321 1,147 1,001 908 844
INtErest EXPENSE ... ovvvvierie e e 637 766 677 557 519 422 402 393 303 369
Income (loss) before changes in accounting....... 319 (64) 486 239 1,021 960 817 706 604 184
NEt INCOME (I0SS) evvevrenrirnriirrier e enenrenene 319 64) 486 239 1,021 960 817 706 604 {921)
Return on net Sa18S...cc.vvvre e veeerens 2.7% (6)% 4.3% 2.5% 8.6% 8.7% 8.5% 8.0% 79% (14.2%
Return on beginning stockholders’ equity ........ 8.0% (1.5% 11.9% 5.9% 24.6% 27.0% 26.5% 27.6% 289%  (34.7)%
Income (loss) per share before changes

IN ACCOUNEING v $ (27 $ 207 $ 103 $ 420 $ 378 $ 314 $ 271 $ 234 ¢§ 8
Net income (loss) per share — basic .. (.27) 2.07 1.03 4.20 3.78 3.14 2.71 2.34 3.97)
Net income (loss) per share — diluted {(27) 2.06 1.02 416 3.74 3.11 2.69 2.32 (3.97)
Dividends declared per share .88 .88 .88 .88 .80 .80 75 .68% B6%
Dividends paid per share .......c..ccoovvervivrveiiiennn, .88 88 88 .86 .80 80 3% B6% B6%
Average number of common

shares outstanding {in thousands) ................. 238,217 234,980 234,276 232,874 243,315 253,723 260547 260,494 258,438 231874
TOMAE ASSELS.....ovvcevvrveriricinrrinnrsen s $23768 $22663 $20469 $17,578 $18002 $16320 $14,653 $13.847 $12,781  $11,467
Trade accounts and notes receivable — net............ 2,734 2,923 3,169 3,251 4,059 3,334 3,153 3,260 2,939 2,794
Financing receivables — nef.........ccooe v, 9,088 9,199 8,276 6,743 6,333 6,405 5912 5,345 4,502 3,785
Equipment on operating leases — net .........cccovoenve. 1,609 1,939 1954 1,655 1,209 775 430 259 219 1985
INVENLOMIES .. ovv v e et 1,372 1,506 1,553 1,294 1,287 1,073 829 721 698 464
Property and equipment — net...........cc.cccrvvver v, 1,998 2,052 1,912 1,782 1,700 1,524 1,352 1,336 1,314 1,240
Short-term borrowings:

Equipment Operations..........c..oo.ocervvvneeiinns 398 773 928 642 1512 N 223 396 54 476

Financial SEIVICES ....u.vvvveerivireariorensrersresrernes 4,039 5,425 4,831 3,846 3,810 3,604 2,921 2,744 2,583 1,125

TOMAl ..o et e 4,437 6,198 5,759 4,488 5,322 3775 3,144 3,140 2,637 1,601

Long-term borrowings:

Equipment Operations...........c..oueeivecnnerrionnns 2,989 2,210 1,718 1,036 553 540 626 703 1,019 1,070

Financial SETVICES .vv..vvvvvviriecvrvrsrsenr e 5,961 4,351 3,046 2,770 2,239 2,083 1,799 1,473 1,035 1,478

TOtAl ..o e 8,950 6,561 4,764 3,806 2,792 2,623 2,425 2,176 2,054 2,548

Total stockholders’ 8QUILY .......c.ovrvierivvvericverenneecnn, 3,183 3,892 4,302 4,094 4,080 4147 3,557 3,085 2,558 2,085
BooK vaiue Per SHare ... ovevreeriieeriiensrccenroen $132¢4 $1682 $1834 §$1751 $1756 $1657 $1383 $11.78 $ 987 § 813
Capital expenditlieS. oo oo $ 3\ $§ 495 $§ 418 $ 308 $ 438 § 492 § 277 § 263 § 230 $ 204
Number of employees (at year end) .......cooo.oueee. 43,051 45,069 43670 38,726 37,002 34420 33919 33375 34252 33,070
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STOCKHOLDER INFORMATION

ANNUAL MEETING

The annual meeting of company stockhclders will be held

at 10 a.m. on February 26, 2003, at the Deere & Company
World Headquarters, One John Deere Flace, Moline, Iflinois.

TRANSFER AGENT
Send address changes and certificates for transfer to:
Deere & Company
¢/0The Bank of New York
Receive & Deliver Dept. - 11W
P.O. Box 11002, Church Street Station,
New York, NY 10286

Direct other inquiries, including those concerning lost, stolen or
destroyed stock certificates or dividend checks, to:

Deere & Company

¢/0The Bank of New York

Shareholder Relations Dept. - 12W

P.O. Box 11258, Church Street Station,

New York, NY 10286

Phone toll-free: 1-800-268-7369

From outside the LLS,, call: (610) 312-5303

Internet: http:/ /www.stockbny.com

DIvIDEND REINVESTMENT/
DIRECT PURCHASE PLAN
Investors may purchase initial Deere & Company shares
through The Bank of New York BuyDIRECT™ Plan. Optional
monthly cash investments may be made automatically through
electronic debits. For enrollment information or inquiries about
existing reinvestment accounts, call the toll-free number above,
or write to:

Deere & Company - DRP

c/0 The Bank of New York

P.O. Box 1938

Newark, N] 07101-9774

STOCKHOLDER RELATIONS

Deere & Company welcomes your comments:
Deere & Company
Stockholder Relations Department
One John Deere Place, Moline, IL 61265-8098
Phone: (309) 765-4539 Fax: (309) 765-5671
Internet: htep: / /www.johndeere.com

INVESTOR RELATIONS
Sccurities analysts, portfolio managers and representatives of
financial institutions may contact:

Marie Ziegler

Vice President, Investor Relations

Deere & Company

One John Deere Place, Moline, IL 61265-8098

Phone: (309) 765-4491

Internet: htep: / /wwiw johndeere.com

STOCK EXCHANGES

Deere & Company common stock (DE) is listed on the New
York, Chicago, and Frankfurt, Germany. stock exchanges.
Form 10-K

The Form 10-K annual report to the Securities and Exchange
Commission will be available to stockhclders in January online,
or upon written request to Deere & Company Stockholder
Relations.

AUDITORS

Deloitte & Touche LLP
Chicago, Nlinois

CORPORATE OFFICERS
ROBERT W, LANE (21)

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

JAMES R. JENKINS (3)

Senior Vice President and General Counsel
NATHAN ]. JONES (24)

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Davip M. Purvis (2)
Senior Vice President and Chief Technology Officer

JamEs M. FIELD (8)
Vice President and Comptroller

MERTROE B. HORNBUCKLE (27)
Vice President, Human Resources

KeNNETH C. Huny (27)

Vice President, Industrial Relations

JAMES R. JABANOCSKI (22)
Vice President and Treasurer

CurTIS G. LINKE (5)

Vice President, Corporate Communications
ROBERT E. MouLps (32)

Vice President, Engineering

Dennis R, SCHWARTZ (35)

Vice President, Pension Fund and Investments

CHARLES R. Stamp, JR. (4)
Vice President, Public Affairs Worldwide

MICHAEL S. TRIPLETT (38)
Vice President, Worldwide Supply Management
MARIE Z. ZIEGLER (24)

Vice President, Investor Relations

JAMES H. BECHT (23)*

Corporate Secretary and Associate General Counsel

OPERATING OFFICERS
WORLDWIDE AGRICULTURAL OPERATIONS
Davip C. EVERITT (27)

President, Agricultural Division - Europe, Africa, South
America and Global Harvesting Equipment Sourcing

Paul Enz (40)
Vice President, Marketing and Product Support -
Europe, Africa & Middle East

JEAN GILLES (22)

Senior Vice President, Manufacturing and Engineering,
Global Harvesting Equipment

H. J. MARKLEY (28)

President, Agricultural Division - North America, Australia,
Asia and Global Tractor and Implement Sourcing

DougLas C. DEVRIES (28)

Senior Vice President, Agricultural Marketing -
North America, Australia & Asia

ADEL A. ZAKARIA (26)

Senior Vice President, Manufacturing and Engineering,
Global Tractor and Implement Sourcing

WORLDWIDE CONSTRUCTION & FORESTRY
& JOHN DEERE POWER SYSTEMS

PIERRE E, LEROY (26)
President, Worldwide C&F and John Deerc Power Systems

ROGER L. BrIDGES (30)

Vice President, Hitachi Joint Venture

Bos B. BROCK (24)
Vice President, North American Sales and Marketing

Max A. GuINN (22)

Vice President, Engineering and Manufacturing

Mikko O. RysA (3)

Vice President, International and New Business

James D. WHITE (33)

Senior Vice President, John Deere Power Systems

WORLDWIDE COMMERCIAL
& CONSUMER EQUIPMENT

Jonn J. JENKINS (35)
President, Worldwide C&CE
MICHAEL ]. MACK, JR. (16)

Senior Vice President, Marketing and Administration

DaNIEL |, ReiLLy (37)
Senior Vice President, Manufacturing and
Product Development

DaviD P WERNING (26)
President, John Deere Landscapes

SERVICES OPERATIONS
SAMUEL R, ALLEN (27 )

President, Global Financial Services
and Corporate Human Resources

Jon D. VOLKERT (8)
President, John Deere Credit

JaMES A, ISRAEL (23)

Senior Vice President, Worldwide Equipment Financing

STEPHEN PuLLIN (8)
Senior Vice President, International Financing

LAWRENCE W. SIDWELL (3)
Senior Vice President, Agricultural Financial Services

RICHARD L. BARTSH (10)
President, John Deerc Health

DiETER HECHT (34)

Vice President, Worldwide Parts Services
() Figures in parentheses represent years of company

service; officers as of [/1/03.
*newly-clected officer




DIRECTORS FROM LEFT: T. KEVIN DUNNIGAN, JOHN R. BLock, Dipak C. Jain, CRANDALL C. BOWLES, THOMAS H. PATRICK,
ROBERT W. LANE, AULANA L. PETERS, LEONARD A. HADLEY, ANTONIO MADERO B., ARTHUR L. KELLY, JOHN R. WALTER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

JoHN R. BLoCK (16)

President and Chief Executive Officer
Food Distributors International

CranpaLL C. BowLEs (7)

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Springs Industries, Inc.
textiles

T. KEviN DUNNIGAN (2)

Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
Thomas & Betts Corporation
electrical components

LEONARD A. HADLEY (8)

Retired President and Chief Executive Officer
Maytag Corporation

appliances

COMMITTEES

Dirak C. JaN (1)

Dean, Kellogg School of Management
Northwestern University

ARTHUR L. KELLY (9)
Managing Partner

KEL Enterprises L.F.
holding and investment partnership

ROBERT W. LANE (2)
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Deere & Company

ANTONIO MADERO B. (5)
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
SANLUIS Corporacidn, S.A. de C.V.

automotive components mamfactu!ing

TrHomas H. PaTricx (2)

Executive Vice Chairman
Merrill Lynch & Co., Inc.
financial services

AutLaNa L. PETERS (1)
Retired Partmer

Gibson, Dunn & Crutcher LLP
law firm

JoHN R. WALTER (11)
Chairman

Ashlin Management Company
private investments

() Figures in parentheses represent
years of board service.

AuDIT REVIEW COMMITTEE
Leonard A. Hadley, Chair
T. Kevin Dunnigan
Dipak C. Jain
Arthur L. Kelly
Aulana L, Peters

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE
John R. Block, Chair
Crandall C. Bowles
Antonio Madero B.
Thomas H. Patrick
John R, Walter

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Crandall C. Bowles, Chair
John R. Block

T. Kevin Dunnigan
Leonard A. Hadley

John R. Walter

Executive COMMITTEE

Robert W. Lane, Chair
John R. Block
Crandall C. Bowles
Leonard A. Hadley
Arthur L. Kelly

PENSION PLAN OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE
Arthur L. Kelly, Chair
Dipak C. Jain
Antonio Madero B.
Thomas H. Patrick
Aulana L. Peters

Building a Business as

Great

as Our Products



Deere & Company 200 2 Highlights

| Business Ethics magazine names

| Deere to list of top corporate citizens.

Net income totals $319 million versus

loss in 2001; equipment sales rise 6%. % Hustrating success in reducing assets,

dealer receivables and inventories

Further streamlining and restructuring actions decline by $323 million. Two-year

lead to lower employment level and closure of reduction tops $600 million.

4 production facilities, :
Sweeping supply-management effort

. . . leads to a nearly 4% ion i
Marking latest step in commitment to clean y 4% reduction in

1

. . | representative-product cost.
environment, Deere PowerTech engines are P P

| approved to run on soy-based biodiesel blend. ‘
Updated 7020-series tractors, plus new

forage harvesters and planters, highlight

1 farm-product introduction for '03 season.

European sales surge due to success of new , In support of growing sales in Europe, John Deere
products and stepped-up marketing effort. s Credit expands into Spain and Italy.

New 100-series lawn tractors being marketed e , Deere cited as one of safest U.S. companies

through John Deere dealers and The Home by Occupational Hazards magazine.

Depot, beginning in spring 2003.

Deere & Company

Construction & Forestry Division and Daewoo announce
plans for largest four-wheel-drive loader under Deere brand.

Cash flow from operations reaches $1.9 billion
as a result of aggressive actions to improve
profit and reduce working capital.

JoHEN DEERE

Nothing Runs Like a Deere

One John Deere Place Moline, Iflinois 61265 Phone: 309.765.8000 www.johndeere.com



